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“ This annual report has been designed with the
theme of sports and games. As we all know, every
game is about fair play, team spirit and the motto
of ‘let the best team win’. We honestly believe that
our business is just like a sport - agility, speed,
strategy and strength are the key to success. ”
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K S Oils - A Leader
in Operational & Manufacturing efficiency

Highest crushing capacity of 1,000 MT. a day
of mustard seeds situated in Morena, in midst
of mustard belt of India.
Highest extraction plant capable of processing
600 MT. oil cake per day.
Lowest production costs in India with state of
the art intigrated facility for crushing oilseeds.
Manufacturing facility is generic which allows
processing of varied oilseeds.
Captive power production of 4.5 MW helps
lessen power cuts and fluctuations while
leading to huge savings in power bills.

Chairman’s
Message

Ramesh Chand Garg
Chairman

The new India is a young India –
Let us feel fit, young & healthy
India today is a young country – 54% of India’s population is below
the age of 25 years, 70% of Indians are below the age of 35 and there
is a sense of new found dynamism and energy in the Indian economy.
With a population class of 1 billion, it is the second biggest market

Dear Stakeholders,

after China and every marketer and brand in the world is wooing this

The past is behind us and the future beckons us to achieve greater

consuming class – from the rich to the middle class to the now

heights in leadership! Market leadership, Brand leadership &

famous bottom of the pyramid Indian consumer.

Customer leadership! We aim to become a leader in Indian market

We as a company are getting agile and excited to be a part of this new

and a global company as to best practices, people care and responsible

India – the young India. With consumer spends on the high and a

corporate citizenry.

general awareness for better living, we would participate in bettering

The year 2005-06 has been a landmark year in the history of the

the life quality of the Indian consumer by providing products that are

company on two aspects – financial performance and business

healthy & confirm to the best international standards. Also, being

directions! The learning has been tremendous and it has prepared us

part of the current retail boom that the country is witnessing is one of

to move ahead into the future.

our primary goals.
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Financial Performance

Retail and Distribution focus

In the year 2005-06, K S Oils reached a new growth phase with the

In the year 2005-06 K S Oils made its formal foray into creating retail

company clocking a robust topline of Rs. 608 crores and the bottom

focussed sales and closed the year with retail sales contributing over

line registering a 351% growth as compared to the profits of the last

20% to the sales. The company has during the year opened a total of

year. Earnings have increased by 245% to Rs. 23.71 per Share. While

eight retail sales depot throughout the country and has ramp up plans

the detailed financial reports and performance is there in the latter

for the next year also.

part of the report what encourages me to mention the same to you is

Leadership position

our growth trajectory – in performance, profitability and delivering

It is a matter of great pride and prestige that K S Oils continues its

continuous value to all our stakeholders.

market leadership position in the edible oil sector in North East and
The financial performance has been possible because of a strategic

East India and has a dominant 50% market share in the branded

direction to our business and being able to take new initiatives which

mustard oil segment. The continuous patronage and loyalty of the

are not only path breaking but also futuristic. From a company which

consumer is only because of our motto of always creating customer

was manufacturing focused we plan to evolve as a company which is

delight in taste, quality, buying experience and providing a healthy

customer centric, brand & marketing led and having a pan Indian

medium for cooking.

presence.
The company is the largest rapeseed crusher in the country and has

Strategic initiatives taken during the year

won the prestigious award “Highest Processor of Rapessed Oilcake

Cost & Manufacturing Initiatives

for the oil year 2004-05”from The Solvent Extractors Association of

The company has undertaken a capacity expansion of the Refinery

India. The company has been awarded the prestigious ISO 9000:2001

which will increase the production capacity from the current 150

certification for Quality Management Systems for Manufacturing and

TPD to 300 TPD thereby giving us increased economies of scale and

Supply of edible oils.

better realisation per unit. The enhanced capacity was commissioned

The future beckons us

in June, 2006. Also, the capacities at Morena have being augmented to
All of us at K S Oils honestly believe that the future beckons us and

increase the crushing volume from 775 TPD to 1,000 TPD in FY

the energy levels and positive sentiments are like never before. With

2006-07.

India being the fourth largest edible oil economy in the world, we are
Also, with an eye to bring down the input costs, the company has

poised to reach greater heights and success in the coming years.

commissioned in March 2006 two wind turbine generators with total
I share with you some of the concrete steps which we are undertaking

capacity of 2.5 MW, which will take care of the company’s 30% power

in the coming year and it will give a strategic direction to the company

requirement, thus saving on the current power costs of the company.

for its leadership position.
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Retail & Brand led growth

The growth curve

The company will undergo a complete transformation to become a

The current year seems to be very exciting for all of us and we hope to

marketing and consumer insight led company with a complete retail

cross the magical figure of Rs. 1,000 crores in sales during the year

and brand focus. The company is well on its way to make a tectonic

2006-07. Our retail thrust will increase our profitability and the

shift from a commodity led mindset to a brand led mentality – in the

distribution network along with acquisitions will ensure our reach to

years to come this will generate better profitability not only in

all major cities in India.

financial terms as to contribution to topline but also in terms of

Surely, the path ahead is very exciting but at the same time equally

brand valuation, higher customer trust & loyalty and better margins.

trying! I would like your whole hearted support in our new found

Along with marketing and brand initiatives, the retail focus of the

direction and would invite you all to be part of this growth journey!

company will be to have its products in leading retail chains, malls and
With hard work and dedication from all of us in the company, we

hypermarkets all over the country other than the regular Kirana

dream to build a India which is fit, young and healthy!

stores.

Inorganic growth plans for pan India presence

Ramesh Chandra Garg

To maintain its leadership position, the company is looking at

Chairman

acquisitions across key markets to enhance production capacity and
reach its products to newer geographies. The company has recently
acquired a manufacturing unit in Rajasthan and is looking at more
acquisitions in the key markets of Punjab & Haryana, Rajasthan and
UP. All the acquisitions will be strategic for increasing penetration in
new markets to make K S Oil a national player with a pan India
presence.

Continued R&D led awareness initiatives for every healthy Indian
We will continuously focus on R&D initiatives to improve the
medicinal and health benefits of edible oils with a focus on mustard
oil. For this, along with our R&D efforts the company will be
promoting mustard oil as heart friendly oil and awareness campaigns
with the medical fraternity, the homemaker and consumers in general
will be undertaken by the company.
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K S Oils
The Leader
at a Glance

Leadership

Acquisitions

Branding

Advanced R & D Facilities

Consumer Centric Company
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The company along with its ambitious acquisition plans has

State-of-the-art technology to enhance extraction per unit

a keen eye on increasing operational efficiency in its current

K S Oils saves costs as compared to other crushers due to better

manufacturing facility, thereby impacting per unit

technology and a state-of-the-art-plant. While ordinary crushers have

profitability and saving direct and indirect costs. Below are

to pass the mustard seeds 3-4 times through expellers to extract oil

some of the initiatives taken by the company to reach

fully, the company crushes just once in expellers and then the
conveyors feed the cake directly to the extraction unit, thus saving

leadership position.

labour and power costs. Also, latest technology ensures that

Economies of scale & Cost competitiveness

extraction of oil per seed is much higher at the company’s plant as
compared to regular crushers.

As the company rolls out an aggressive growth story, cost
competiveness is an important determinant to the company’s success.

The company’s latest technology helps to retain the taste and

The company has its manufacturing facilities in the mustard growing

nutritional benefit which is often lost during the crushing process.

belt of India located strategically in Morena (M.P.) and Jodhpur
K S Oils’ Morena plant today has the largest crushing capacity of
(Rajasthan), both major centers of Mustard trade in India. The fully
mustard seeds in India at 1000 MT per day and has the highest
integrated state-of-the-art-plant in Morena having Kohllus,
extraction plant of 600 TPD in the local area. The company has been
Expellers, Solvent extraction plant, Refinery and Vanaspathi
able to become a low cost producer in India of edible oils because of
manufacturing unit is located in a large 4,00,000 sq.feet factory
its state-of-the-art integrated plant consisting of Crushers, Expellers,
complex, all under a single roof. This not only provides the added
Extraction, Refinery and Vanaspathi divisions.
advantage over competitors but also helps reduce the cost of logistics

R&D led Growth

considerably. The company enjoys substantial lower manufacturing
cost due to economies of large scale production. The company

The company has a state of the art laboratory which is the backbone

generates 2.5 MW of power from its 2 windmills reducing

of quality control for purchases of mustard and other seeds for

considerably, the costs on power.

checking of moisture, oil content, etc. The laboratory is used for

The company also has a large storage area which ensures ability to

continuous quality checks at each stage of the manufacturing process

handle and store seasonal bulk arrival of oil seeds and oils. This also

of crushing, extraction and refining. The company has a special

allows the company to wither the various vagaries of short term price

laboratory for research into making new downstream products like

fluctuations.

derivatives from mustard oil which is used in Oleo-chemical
industries.
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Mustard oil is also a rich source of Vitamin E and there is a great

Leadership & Enhanced Reach

demand for Vegan-Vitamin (vitamins extracted from vegetable

K S Oils has planned to open 15 Central Distribution Points (CDP) in

matter) as an organic source of vitamins.

addition to its existing 8 CDPs and is in talks with retailers to stock
their products on the shelves to increase the visibility.

Recently there has been a demand for mustard sauce in fast food
industry and the company is all set to launch an array of new products

Today K S Oils is the leader in Mustard oil production in India. The

once the product development is completed.

company has a vision to retain its leadership in Mustard oil segment

Mustard oil is traditionally hailed as very good oil for massage &

with continuous innovation, improvement, up gradation and being a

health purposes the company plans to launch special SPA Oils for

consumer centric company. The company is enthused with the new

massages. This would have mustard oil, kapoor, herbs & herbal

opportunities available and the new vision. As the company forays

formulas to get a value added product from mustard oil. Mustard oil is

into its new arena the strategies it follows are the foundation that will

the base for many types of ayurvedic oils for treatment of arthritis,

take the company to its destination.

and other ailments.

Leadership through acquisition

Backward integration into packaging

K S Oils has a clear and sharp acquisition strategy. The company

The company at a very early stage realised that packaging is an

recently acquired one more plant in Jodhpur (Rajasthan) and further

important aspect in maintaining quality, quantity and taste standards

plans to expand aggressively in Mustard and Soya growing regions in

till it reaches the end consumer. Thus, the company has backward

Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana and Punjab. The

integrated itself to set up a complete packaging department which

company is also looking at plants with extraction of Sunflower and

has its own Tin manufacturing division, HDPE Jars manufacturing

Groundnut oil for acquisition in the next few years to make the

division and Bottle manufacturing division – this ensures a complete

company a leading player in branded edible oil market.

in-house packaging and production facility, thus the company has a
complete control over pilferage and adulteration as also reduction of
costs.
The company ensures that the nutritional benefit is not lost while
packaging and thus has various sizes of Pouches and Pet bottles
ranging from 100 ml, 200 ml, 500 ml to 1 Ltr. variants. These sachets
are specially designed for rural areas and retail distribution to replace
the unhygienic system of oil sold loosely.
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K S Oils
Growth Strategy
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Over the past few years we have observed that growth cannot come
just by us increasing capacity or by bettering our performance each
year. With the changing dynamics in the world of business, the
company has to look at every way of growing and adding value –
organic and inorganic. Thus, we have consciously taken a two fold
approach to our vision of becoming a Rs. 1,000 crore company by
increasing our current capacities and looking at acquisitions in a big
way for companies which match our line of business, can add value
and fits into our culture.

Capacity Expansion
The company’s manufacturing plant in Morena, Madhya Pradesh is
one of the most strategically located units; it is situated in one of the
most productive oilseed cultivated geographies thereby assuring a
steady supply and best quality of raw material to the company.
The company has during the year invested in plant expansion and
refinery capacity has increased from 150 TPD to 300 TPD, the new
capacity was commissioned in June, 2006. With this the company
plans to double sales from refinery division in the FY 2006-07. Also,
the capacities at Morena have being augmented to increase the
crushing volume from 775 tpd to 1,000 tpd in FY 2006-07.
The company’s plant modernisation has resulted in a world class state
of the art plant which results in the better extraction per seed unit,
much above the industry standards, an efficiency of more than 33%
than normal crushers.
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better costs (as transportation costs, etc. will be absent) and ultimately

Inorganic growth
Why the need for inorganic growth?

make us closer to the customer. Having a strategic plant in each of the

The senior management has realised that with a single manufacturing

oilseeds growing belts of India, the company will be able to establish

capacity in Madhya Pradesh creating a pan India presence for the

and service its new 17 Central Distribution Points (CDP) for its retail

company will become difficult. Inorganic growth will address two

branded products. After having achieved market leadership in East &

very critical aspects of the growth story which the company is

North East India market, we hope to be leaders in rest of India soon.

embarking on:

Recent Developments

a) Capacity expansion to tap other oilseed cultivating geographies-

The company has already acquired a plant in Jodhpur, Rajasthan in

Other than the Morena belt, today oilseed cultivation (especially

June 2006 which has a crushing capacity of 225 TPD and refinery

mustard/ rape seeds) is very high in the states of Rajasthan, Madhya

capacity of 50 TPD annually; the acquisition is for Rs. 20 crores and

Pradesh, Punjab & Haryana, and Uttar Pradesh. While a steady

will help the company in its growth foray – the capital investment is in

supply of raw material is available in these areas, logistic issues and

buying out the current refinery and then upgrading it with the latest

carriage costs make it unviable for the company to process the seeds

machinery, systems and people.

only in the Morena.
With the total refinery capacity of over 350 TPD in India’s leading
To tap the above states, the company is aggressively looking at

mustard seed producing states of Madhya Pradesh and Rajasthan, the

acquiring manufacturing units for the purpose of setting up of new

company is poised to attain a quantum jump in overall production

crushing facilities. The company will achieve additional production

capacity as also lead its foray in key Northern & Western Indian

capacities of 500 TPD crushing, 400 TPD solvent extraction and 200

markets.

TPD refining during the year.
The above steps will surely help us in achieving our Rs.1,000 crore
b) “Near to the market” strategy

turnover for the year 2006-07.

With the company’s plan to enter newer markets like North &
Western India, it is imperative that a “Near to the market” strategy
will help us in reaching our products in these markets in shorter time,
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K S Oils
Retail
Strategy
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1) Macro Economic Scenario
India today is the 4th largest economy in the world (measure in Purchasing Price Parity terms) and is
expected to move up to 3rd place by 2010. There is a burgeoning consuming class and the economy is
expected to grow at 7-8% per annum over the next few years; also, the per capita disposable income is
expected to rise till 2015 at an average rate of 8.5%.
There is a tectonic shift happening in the Indian Bazaar - with the Indian consumer becoming loyal to
brands and instead of shopping for products, the shopping experience is becoming the differentiator
for customer loyalty. Thus the mall culture is today dominating the urban landscape across India organised retail penetration is at currently just 3% of the total Indian retail market and accordingly to
forecasts, organised retail sector is expected to grow by 400% from US$ 7 billion currently to US$ 30
billion by 2010 as per a study by Ernst & Young.

2) K S Oil’s two fold retail strategy
As part of the focused retail strategy, the company has in the current year seen the contribution from
retail sales (of mustard oil) at 20% of the total oil sales. The company in the year 2006-07 has set up an
ambitious target of upping this share to 50% which will result in not only better realisations and profits
but also a brand driven marketing thrust. The company’s initiative in making available its branded
mustard oil products to retail customers will result in 5% incremental margins over wholesale sales.

Focus on organised Indian retail players
To participate in the great Indian retail boom, the company has chalked out aggressive plans to sell its
products through leading retailers in the country. The company will have dual benefits – the first being,
the company’s products will reach to customers all over India riding on the large store network of the
retailers which will help in sales; the second, which is more strategic and long term, it will give K S Oils
products greater visibility in the shelves of the retailers across the country thus having a better brand
recall from the end consumer. The company is in advanced talks with leading retail chains, hypermarkets
and mall owners for partnerships to sell its products through the organised retail route.
The company believes that with the awareness of mustard oil being a preferred cooking medium for the
homemaker globally, gaining acceptance in India, the young and affluent Indian consumer will have a
loyalty towards mustard oil which is branded thus giving the customers a greater assurance as to quality,
safety and health benefits.
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Product penetration through retail outlets

Retail sales led Central Distribution Points (CDP) across the

The company based on internal findings and external syndicated

country

research has found that one of the greatest barriers to the sale of

K S Oils has 8 CDPs and has plans to open another 15 CDPs across

branded mustard oil in kirana stores (small retail outlets) is the non-

the country. Some of the proposed CDPs would be opened in

availability of branded oil in the desired packet, size or quantity as

Chattisgarh, Guwahati, Gwalior, Bilaspur and Raipur to have a

required by the consumer. Thus, 90% of mustard oil sale in the

national reach. This will help not only in eliminating the brokers and

country currently happens through loose sales where the utensil

middlemen but also help the company have better control over its

(plastic bottle, bag, tin, can, glass bottle, etc.) is brought by the

products and other logistics issues which are the key for success any

customer. To overcome this, the company has for the first time made

retail initiative.

available its branded mustard oil in small packs and sachets for the

With all the above initiatives, the company plans to have its branded

consumer who does not have buying capacity. Thus currently the

products Double Sher & Kalash, KS Refined and KS Gold available

company has launched 100 ml 200ml and 500 ml sachets and

across the country for the homemaker – the high end spending rich

pouches.

class to the burgeoning middle class consumer to the people at the

The reach through Kirana stores will not only add to the sales volume

bottom of the pyramid. With the above retail thrust which the

of the company but will be able to get the customer “Try” its product

company is working towards, we have faith in ourselves that K S Oils

at a very early stage with the sachet packs acting as test marketing for

will become the preferred choice of every homemaker in this

the consumers. Also, with the packs coming to the shops directly in a

country.

sealed and pilferage proof high technology packaging, the consumer
can be assured of the quantity, quality and price of the product – this
will automatically put a self imposed quality check on the
shopkeeper. The two brands which will drive this initiative are Kalash
and Double Sher, both of these brands already have a strong
presence in North East and East India.
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Graph showing organised retail sector
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Mustard Oil
The Heart Friendly
Oil
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Mustard Oil – The heart friendly oil for the whole family
Today India no more is a country of just healthy people but has moved to become a country which has become health
conscious. With the advent of globalisation certain issues like work life balance, hectic work schedule, less time for
physical activities and new food habits has cropped, thus the importance of the cooking medium is gaining its due
importance.
As has been the global trend, medical research has shown that mustard oil is one of the most heart friendly, especially in
the Indian context. Some proven facts and research papers go on to prove the same
A study was conducted among 350 cases of heart attack in eight hospitals and 700 normal people in Delhi and
Bangalore by a team comprising experts from Harvard School of Public Health (Boston), All India Institute of
Medical Sciences and St. John’s Medical College, Bangalore.
The paper has been published in the American Journal of Clinical Nutrition, Dr. K. Srinath Reddy from AIIMS,
renowned scientists involved in the study, says “ Use of mustard oil was associated with a two-fold lower risk than
was use of sunflower or other oils. Similarly, those who use mustard oil for frying foods lower their risk for heart
attack by 71 per cent. ”
The reason for the protective effect of mustard oil is that it is rich in alpha linolenic acid which is a source of
omega-3 polyunsaturated fatty acids, known for giving protection to heart.
A fact file on health of Asians, especially the Indian community
Alpha linolenic acid reduces the adhesion-aggregation tendency of blood platelet which should decrease the risk
of heart attack.
Cardio-vascular diseases in India cause three million deaths, accounting for 25 per cent of all mortality. The WHO
predicts that deaths due to these diseases are projected to double between 1985 and 2015.
Research on Indian Asians living abroad indicates a 40 per cent higher risk of heart disease mortality than that for
Europeans.
There is a definite shift of consumption to heart friendly oils as health awareness is growing at a rapid pace in India.
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Brand
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20

21

Our Brand Strategy will create compelling products &
deliver complete health solutions to our customers!
We honestly believe in the quote above; brand building is a
continuous journey to create trust, dialogue and a sense of bonding
with the customer – by creating a compelling value proposition in our
products and the experience that we deliver to them. Today, K S Oils
is well on its way to transform itself from a manufacturing company
to an agile, customer focused marketing outfit.
Going ahead, it is our firm belief that brand differentiation &
recognition will be the key to our business competitiveness. Thus, we
are ready to connect to the new age customer who is more informed,
sophisticated and ready to pay a premium for the best - quality, price
and experience. Our being a health product, we feel that our initiative
to strengthen our brand at an all India level will lead to better market
share, mindshare and increased profitability!
Some of the key steps that we have initiated especially in promoting
our brands Double Sher, Kalash, KS refined range in edible oils and
KS Gold Vanaspati are as follows

1) World class product experience
We are consciously working towards creating an unmatched
experience for every customer when he or she buys our products –

22

we have laid special emphasis on packaging so that the product is

improvement for a customer experience which is special! To

made available to the consumer in the same way as it left the factory –

communicate with the customers we are rolling out an integrated

safety, quality, quantity and external visibility. Thus a full proof seal &

communication plan which will include advertising, below the line

quality check goes into each of our products so that the customer gets

activities and various brand building initiatives.

the best, be it our bold logos, high quality printing and packaging

4) The Homemaker is our customer!

which ensures not only a high visibility and attractiveness for the
With mustard oil gaining acceptance as a preferred choice for every
customer but also reduces the chances of fake or spurious products
Indian homemaker because of medically researched facts as reducing
being sold in our name.
the chances of heart attacks, we at K S Oils are focused in creating a

2) An all new distribution system and all India chain

communication and bonding with the homemaker of the family – the

To ensure seamless availability of products across the country at all

mother, housewife, daughter! The company is rolling out a slew of

times for every consumer, we are creating a robust distribution system

initiatives in association with the medical fraternity, channel partners

all over India - to create a single customer experience. The

like hypermarkets, malls, etc. to start a dialogue with the homemaker

distribution system will appoint dealers, stockists and also increase

which will essentially be on information sharing, medical facts and

the number of central distribution points to ensure product

tips to healthy living and feedback from them for bettering our

availability across the country. Also, the distribution mechanism will

products.

ensure that customer led feedback and information is used for better

With the above initiatives, we feel that it will help us in getting better

production planning, product reach and demand forecasting.

market share, brand recall and profitability and create a long term

3) Consumer Insight led product development and R&D efforts

loyalty and relationship with the customer. On a number scale, the

We would aggressively pursue a marketing strategy to connect with

company plans to double its contribution from retail sales in the

our customers – both rationally and emotionally! For this, we are

current year to 50% from the current 20% and also have an all India

putting special emphasis on consumer research which we have linked

visibility.

with our product development process – betterment and
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The school is equipped with a modern computer & internet facility,

K S Oils – Helping improve lives of the people

science laboratory and a well stoked library; it also boasts along with

responsibly!

academics of spanking sports facility – a state of the art gymnasium,

Continue its commitment to the Armed forces of India

Swimming Pool and horse riding facility.

The company continues its commitment of over 15 years of being

Respecting the environment & recycling waste produce

the largest supplier of edible oil to the Indian Defense Department
sector.

The company believes in protecting the environment and thus has

The company has been able to maintain its leadership

been instrumental in promoting the local brick kiln industry using the

position because of the highest standards in quality and taste, thus

company’s coal ash remnants from the boiler. This not only helps the

contributing to make every jawan in the armed forces healthy and fit!

company in recycling its waste which otherwise would have been

K S Oils today supplies a range of edible oils to the armed forces –

harmful for the environment but it has also given fillip to the

mustard oil, vanaspati and other edible oils and hopes to continue this

environment friendly and less polluting fly ash bricks

tradition for years to come, which is a matter of great pride for the

Creating a local economy which is self-sufficient and

company!

economically independent
Driving force in creating primary education in Morena, M.P.

Morena in Madhya Pradesh is one of the most backward areas in the

The founder fathers of the company realised at a very early stage that

state but with K S Oils manufacturing facility, today over 50,000

education and knowledge will go a long way in creating a society

families are getting a source of income. While the company currently

which is self sufficient and economically independent. Keeping this

has a workforce of over 2000, it provides indirect employment and

mind and the backwardness of Morena, primary education became a

income to people like farmers who supply the produce to the

focus for the promoters of K S Oils, the Garg family.

company, dependent downstream industry like brick kiln factories,

Today, the Garg family is the key force behind one of the most

transporters, distributors and other people which lead to the Morena

renowned schools in Morena – a CBSE school having over 1000

belt becoming a sustainable economic model.

students, many from the nearby rural areas. Today the school is not

The company believes in creating an environment of economic

only a learning ground for the children of the employees of the

independence and a self sustaining macro economic class in all places

company but is a place where thousands of children from

where it has its facility and thus creating value for all its stakeholders!

economically challenged families in and around Morena come to have
a basic primary education.
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Directors’
Report
Dear Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 21st Annual Report and the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

Financial Results
The highlights of the financial results are as under

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

Year Ended on

Year Ended on

31st March, 2006

31st March, 2005

56,263

42,517

Export Sales

4,555

2,729

Total Sales

60,818

45,246

2,760

1,436

715

771

2,045

665

285

253

1,760

412

243

76

1,517

336

Profit brought forward from previous year.

845

615

Profits after tax available for Appropriation.

2,362

951

General Reserve

50

50

Proposed/ Interim Dividend on equity shares

101

49

Corporate Tax on Proposed/ Interim Dividend

14

7

165

106

2,197

845

Sales

Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (PBIDT)
Interest
Profit before Depreciation and Tax (PBDT)
Depreciation
Profit before Tax (PBT)
Provision for Taxation
Profit after Tax (PAT)
Add

Appropriations

Total Appropriation
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet
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Review of Operations

1.14 percent over the previous year. Your Company continued to be
a major player in the mustard oil segment.

The business performance during the year has been commendable.
The net profit of Rs. 15.17 Crores is the highest ever achieved by
your Company. The Company’s strong results are evident of
Company’s growth strategies. During the year under review, your
company maintained performance that has surpassed industry
benchmarks in the edible oil segment.

Refinery Division
Production of Refined oil at 57,906 M.T. as against that of 14,342
M.T. in previous year accounted a significant jump of 304 percent as
compared to the previous year.
Vanaspati Division
Production of Vanaspati at 10,047 M.T. as against that of 13,595
M.T. thus registered a fall of 26 percent as compared to the previous year.

Sales for the year have increased by 34 percent at Rs. 608 Crores as
against Rs. 453 Crores during 2004-05. The profit after tax has
registered an impressive growth of 351 percent at Rs. 15.17 Crores as
against Rs. 3.36 Crores during 2004-05.

Solvent Division
During the year DOC (De-oiled Cake) produced at 1,10,697 M.T. as
against that of 93,157 M.T. during the pervious year thus recorded a
increase by 18.83 percent over the previous year.

During the year, sales and profit growth was driven by launching of
Company’s products in the retail market. The company’s strategy of
developing high quality value added products at competitive price
and aggressively target the retail market continues to strengthen
Company’s leadership position.

Dividend
Your Directors have declared an interim dividend of Rs. 1.20
(12 per cent) per equity share for the year 2005-06, at their meeting
held on 29th April, 2006. The dividend entailing an outgo of
Rs. 100.71 Lacs have been paid to those shareholders, whose names
appeared in the register of members as on 8th May, 2006. In view of
the above, your Directors shall not recommend any further dividend
and propose to approve the interim dividend as full and final
dividend for the year 2005-06.

The major growth drivers for the improved performance are
 The share of retail market in total turnover has increased
substantially and company’s campaign for Mustard Oil as “Heart
Healthy” Cooking Medium has gained wide acceptance from
consumers.
 Retailing of products, increased capacity utilisation and removal
of excise duty on Refined Oil and Vegetable Ghee.
 Increased production of refined oil.
 Adoption of strict Cost Control measures and better Working
Capital management.

The total dividend outgo on account of dividend payment on equity
shares for the financial year 2005-06, inclusive of tax on distributed
profits, is Rs. 114.84 Lacs as against Rs. 55.79 Lacs paid for the
previous year.

Performance of Divisions
Oil Division
During the year Mustard seeds processed at 82,874 M.T. against that
of 81, 941 M.T. in previous year thus recorded a marginal increase of

Transfer to Reserve
Your directors propose to transfer a sum of Rs. 50.00 Lacs to the
General Reserve account.
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Bonus Issue of shares

Corporate Governance

Your Directors have recommened an issuance of Bonus shares in
the ratio of 1:1, i. e. one additional equity share for every one existing
equity share held by the members of the Company on the record
date as may be fixed by the Board by capitalising the securities/ share
premium account and general reserves.

The company confers significant consideration to good Corporate
Governance as it contributes to enhanced Investors’ confidence,
improves Investors’ protection and achieves highest level of
transparency.
Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement a report on Corporate
Governance together with the Auditors’ Certificate on compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance is provided elsewhere
in this Annual Report.

Changes in Capital Structure
During the year under review, the company has allotted 35,00,000
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on conversion of 35,00,000 warrants.
Due to this, the subscribed and paid-up equity share capital increased
from 48,92,900 equity shares to 83,92,900 shares.

Voluntary Delisting of Equity Shares from the
M. P. Stock Exchange, Indore.
Your company is listed with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(BSE), Mumbai and Madhya Pradesh Stock Exchange (MPSE),
Indore. While BSE provides easy liquidity to the Investors with its
nationwide terminals, there is almost no trading of company’s shares
on MPSE. In view of above your Directors proposes for voluntary
de-listing of its equity shares from MPSE. The proposed de-listing
of the equity shares of the company will not affect the Investors.
The Company’s equity shares will continue to be listed at the BSE.

Utilisation of proceeds received on the Preferential
Issue of Convertible Warrants
During the year company converted 35,00,000 warrants into the same
number of equity shares and total proceeds raised were Rs. 875.00
Lacs, for the purposes stated in the notice convening the extra
ordinary general meeting on 29th January, 2005. Out of the total
amount of warrants, Rs. 656.25 Lacs were received during the year
under review. The amount was utilised for discharging long term
liabilities, additional working capital and capital expenditure,
and total utilisation was Rs. 883.00 Lacs against the aforesaid
purposes, hence there is no unutilised money remaining at the end
of the financial year.

Your Directors are pleased to report that the company has also applied
for additional listing of the equity shares of the company at the
National Stock Exchange Ltd. (NSE), Mumbai having nation wide
terminals in order to provide more liquidity to all the Members and
Investors of the company.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

A separate section on Management’s Discussion and Analysis as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges, is given in the Annual Report.

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (1) (e) of the section
217 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure
of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,
are given at Annexure ‘A’ to the Report.

Awards and Recognition
Your company has been awarded the prestigious ISO 9001:2000
certification for “Quality Management Systems for Manufacturing
and Supply of Edible Oils.” This will go a long way to establish
K S Oils as a quality-oriented organisation.

Employee Relations
None of the employees of your Company received a remuneration
in excess of reportable amount as laid down under section 217(2A)
of the Companies Act, 1956. read with the Companies (Employees
particulars) Rules, 1975..

Your company will maintain its customer centric approach with
emphasis on continuous improvement in the quality and value of
our products.

Relations between the employees and the management continued
to be cordial during the year.

Your Company has won the prestigious award for the “Highest
Processor of Rapeseed Oilcake for the year 2004-05” from The
Solvent Extractors’ Association of India, a premier association of
vegetable oil industry & trade.

Fixed Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public or its
employees during the year under review and no amount of principal
or interest was outstanding as of the balance sheet date.
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Directors

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2006 on a going concern basis.

During the year under review, Mr. M.L. Garg, resigned from the
Board on 3rd September, 2005. The Board while accepting
Mr. M.L. Garg’s resignation, recorded with deep appreciation the
contributions made by him during his tenure on the Board.
Mr. M.L. Garg participated actively in the deliberations of the Board
and the company benefited immensely from his insights.

Auditors and their Report
M/s. Rathi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company
will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Company has received a
certificate from the Auditors to the effect that their re-appointment,
if made, would be in accordance with section 224 (IB) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Mr. P.K. Mandloi, retires by rotation and is eligible for
re-appointment.
Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg, non-executive Director and Chairman
appointed as the Chairman and whole-time Director for a period of
five years with effect from 1st July, 2006 by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 30th June, 2006.

The members are requested to consider their re-appointment for the
current financial year 2006-07 and authorise the Board of Directors
to fix their remuneration.
The Auditors’ report is self explanatory and is not providing any
qualification, which needs to be commented by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Your Directors has also revised the remuneration payable to
Mr. Sourabh Garg, whole-time Director of the Company
w.e.f. 1st July, 2006 for the remaining part of his tenure.
Mr. Sourabh Garg, whole-time Director has also been re-appointed
by the Board at their meeting held on 30th June, 2006, for a further
period of 5 years from 1st June, 2007 to 31st May, 2012.

Acknowledgements
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for
continued assistance and co-operation extended to the Company by
its Customers, Investors, Bankers, Regulatory & Government
Authorities, Service Providers and its own dedicated Employees.
The Board of Directors express their gratitude for the co-operation
extended by the Consortium Bankers i.e. Central Bank of India
and Andhra Bank.

The aforesaid appointments require the approval of the members at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Directors propose to
pass the necessary resolutions as set out in the notice of the AGM.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement under section 217 (2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that
i)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended
31st March, 2006 the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

Morena
3oth June, 2006

ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and have
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2006
and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that
date;
iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;
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Ramesh Chand Garg
Chairman

Annexures
to Directors’
Report
The captive power generated by the wind farm project is estimated
to lead to substantial savings on the power costs for the Company.
The project being completely pollution free and environment
friendly will also entitle us for Carbon Credits.

Annexure (A) to Directors’ Report
Information pursuant to section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act,
1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.

c) Impact of the measures taken as per a) & b) above for
reduction of energy consumption and consequential
impact on the cost of production of goods
As a result of the above measures undertaken, the power
consumption in plants has been reduced thus saving in energy
costs during the period under consideration.

A) Conservation of Energy
The company continues its attempts to improve Energy conservation
and utilisation
a) Energy Conservation measures undertaken
 The Company has monitored its energy consumption
regularly and has made several modifications in the plant
resulting in reduced energy consumption.
 Installation of electric control panels.
 Installation of High voltage control stabiliser.
 The Company has put in efforts to improve overall energy
efficiency by installing power efficient equipments.

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit
of production
Given in Form - ‘A’ on the following page:

b) Additional Investment and proposal if any, being
implemented for reduction of consumption of energy
The company has undertaken Wind farm project by installing
2 wind mills of 1.25 MW each for total 2.5 MW of energy
generation at Nagda Hills, Dewas, M.P. Both the Wind mills
were fully commissioned in March 2006, at an investment of
Rs. 11.73 Crores. The total guaranteed annual power generation
from both the Wind mills is 54 lakh units p.a. and will be fed
into the grid of the Madhya Pradesh State Electricity Board.
The power generated will be used for captive consumption at
company’s Morena plant on a 2 percent wheeling charge. The
derived benefit is in the form of credit of the number of power
units generated by the 2 wind mills to the Company’s account.
In addition to providing the company with power, this project
provides an income tax shield to the company.
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Form - ‘A’
Form for Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy
A) Power and Fuel Consumption
Particulars
1)

Year Ended
31/03/2006

Year Ended
31/03/2005

72,79,120

52,97,220

30,90,1105

2,51,64,838

4.25

4.75

86,69,791

81,05,586

Unit per litre of Diesel Oil (Rs.)

4.01

4.20

Cost/ Unit (Rs.)

6.33

5.29

Electricity
a) Purchase
Units
Total Amount (Rs.)
Rate/ Unit (Rs.)
b) Own Generation
I) Through Diesel Generator
Units

II) Through Wind Turbine Generator ( WTG’s)

2)

-

Units

138

-

Total Amount

580

-

Rate/ Unit (Rs.)

4.20

-

Quantity (M.T.)

22,308

1,3087

Total Cost (Rs.)

6,71,58,917

3,44,88,792

3,010.53

2,635.35

Coal

Average Rate (Rs.)
3)

Furnace Oil

-

-

4)

Others

-

-

Year Ended
31/03/2006
(PMT)

Year Ended
31/03/2005
(PMT)

72.67

84.11

0.10

0.08

B) Consumption per Unit of Production
Particulars

Production - per Unit (2,19,458 M.T. of Oil, DOC & Vanaspati Ghee)
1)

Electricity

2)

Coal

3)

Furnace Oil

-

-

4)

Others

-

-
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Form - ‘B’
B) Technology Absorption

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D
Development of high quality, value added, cost-effective &
consumer preferred edible oils. Reduction in cost of raw and
packaging materials and reduction in product process time. The
quality of company’s products has improved and thereby
enjoying significant position in the industry.

(Form for Disclosures of Particulars with respect to Absorption)
Research & Development (R & D)
The company is carrying out research work on mustard oil so that
more value added products could be introduced. The company is
also developing derivatives and additives of Mustard Oil.

c) Future Plan of Action
The Company will continue to pursue its R & D work on
developing high quality products to meet the ever changing
consumer needs and adding value to our products.

a) Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company
During the year under review efforts made in the following areas
with a specific objective of optimisation of process systems and
adopting parameters ensuring Product improvement and cost
reduction:











d) Expenditure on Research and Development
Charged to the respective heads of accounts and not allocated
separately.

Development of company’s Brands ‘Double Sher’ and
‘Kalash’, mustard oil products to expand market and increase
consumption and promote them as ‘Heart Friendly Cooking
Medium.’
To reduce the cost of materials, to effect import substitution,
process simplification and time reduction.
Quality improvements and upgradation of raw material
suppliers.
Brand Development.
Quality Control.
Packing Development.
Strong presence in Retail market.

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation
a) Efforts made
Optimisation of the manufacturing process, reduction of waste
and cost efficiency.
b) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts
Improvement in quality of products and cost efficiency. Benefits
to Consumers through quality enhancement and reduction in
the cost of products.

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo of the Company
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars
a)

Year Ended
31/03/2005

645.75

630.53

21,657

11,795

1.66

-

Foreign Exchange earnings of the Company
Earning on FOB basis

b)

Year Ended
31/03/2006

Foreign Exchange outgo
CIF value of Imports
a) Raw Material (Oil)
b) Expenditure in Foreign currency
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Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance
To
The Members of
K. S. Oils Limited
We have reviewed the records concerning the Company’s compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement entered into, by the Company, with the Stock Exchanges, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2006.
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representation made by
the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied within all material respects the Conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.
As required by the Guidance Note issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that as per records
maintained by the Company, there were no Investor grievances remaining unattended/ pending for more than 30 days.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, nor as to the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For and on behalf of
Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Gwalior
30th June, 2006

R. S. Rathi
(Partner)
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Management’s
Discussion &
Analysis
K. S. Oils Ltd. promoted by the Garg family has maintained its
leadership position as the largest processor of Mustard/ Rape
seeds in India. In FY06 we have also tasted success in asserting
our presence in the Soya Refined edible oil and Vanaspati markets.
K S Oils operates in the edible oil and commodities market from
Morena, Madhya Pradesh strategically located in the Mustard
growing heartland. Morena shares its border with the states of
Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh. The close proximity to the Mustard
growing regions provide steady raw material supplies almost
throughout the year giving K S Oils the economies to operate at
maximum efficiency.

to rise at an average rate of 8.5%. Edible oils and fats are essential
ingredients for a healthy and balanced diet. Demand for edible oils is
rising owing to increase in population as also rise in the living
standards. World Health Organisation (WHO) recommends
consumption of 20 to 25 kg per person p.a. India’s per capita
consumption of edible oils hovers around 11.5 kg per person p.a. as
compared to the world average of 20.50 kg per person p.a.
Considering this, the domestic demand of edible oil is going to
increase substantially in future.
The Indian Bazaar is undergoing a tectonic shift - with the Indian
consumer becoming loyal to brands and instead of shopping for
products, the shopping experience is becoming the differentiator for
customer loyalty. The malls have begun to dominate the urban
landscape across India but, the Organised retail penetration still
remains abysmal at 3% of the total Indian retail market. According
to forecasts organised retail sector is expected to grow by 400% from
US$ 7 billion currently to US$ 30 billion by 2010.

The company is one of the largest and regular suppliers of
edible oils to the Indian Defence Department.
The Refined oil market in India is growing at a scorching pace. We
have invested in the expansion of refining capacity from 150 TPD to
250 TPD. The new capacity was commissioned in June 2006. With
this increased capacity we plan to double our sales from the Refinery
division in FY 2006-07.

Graph showing Organised Retail Sector

Our plant modernisation efforts have resulted in a world class
state-of-the-art integrated manufacturing facility, ensuring better oil
extraction per seed unit, much above the industry standards, an
efficiency of more than 33% than the normal crushers.
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India is the largest importer of edible oils in the world and it boasts
of 2nd largest Import bill after Crude Oil. The domestic production
of oil seeds is not sufficient to meet the demand and any increased
production is offset by the growing demand.
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create a single customer experience. We are opening Central
Distribution Points (CDP) in various parts of the country.

Business Direction
K S Oils has focussed its energies on building a strong brand presence
in the Indian market. Our Brand Strategy is concentrated in creating
compelling products and delivering complete health solutions to
our customers! We honestly believe that Brand building is a
continuous journey to create trust, dialogue and a sense of bonding
with the customer by creating a compelling value proposition in our
products and the experience that we deliver to them. Today K S Oils
is well on its way to transform itself from a manufacturing company
to an agile, customer focussed marketing outfit.

This year new additional CDPs in states of Chattisgarh, Rajasthan,
Uttar Pradesh, Delhi, Jammu and North Eastern states are being
opened to give us a pan-India presence. An effective distribution
mechanism shall ensure that the customer led feedback and
information reaches the top management and is used for better
production planning, product reach and demand forecasting.
3) Consumer Insight led product development and R & D efforts
An aggressively pursued marketing strategy is followed by the
company to connect with our customers – both rationally and
emotionally ! For this, we put special emphasis on consumer research
which we have linked with our product development process. To
communicate with the customers we have rolled out an integrated
communication plan which will include advertising, below the line
activities and various brand building initiatives.

It is our firm belief that brand differentiation and recognition will
be the key to our business competitiveness in the coming times. Our
brands shall connect to the old and loyal customers as well as to the
new age customer who is more informed, sophisticated and ready to
pay a premium for the best – quality, price and experience. Ours
being a health product, we feel that our initiative to strengthen our
brand at an all India level will lead to better market share, mindshare
and increased profitability!

4) The Homemaker is our customer!
With mustard oil gaining acceptance as a preferred choice for every
Indian homemaker because of its medically researched facts as
reducing the chances of heart attacks, we at K S Oils focus in creating
a communication and bonding with the homemaker of the family –
the mother, housewife, daughter! The company has rolled out a
slew of initiatives in association with the medical fraternity, channel
partners like hypermarkets, malls, etc. to start a dialogue with the
homemaker which essentially is on information sharing, medical
facts and tips to healthy living and feedback from them for bettering
our products.

Some of the key steps that we have initiated during the past year
especially in promoting our brands Double Sher, Kalash,
KS Refined and KS Gold are as follows
1) World Class product experience
We are consciously working towards creating an unmatched experience
for every customer when he or she buys our products – we have laid
special emphasis on packaging so that the product is made available
to the consumer in the same way as it left the factory – safety, quality,
quantity and external visibility.
2) Distribution System and all India chain
To ensure seamless availability of products across the country and
especially in the North, East and North East region at all times for
every consumer, we have a created a robust distribution system – to
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Opportunities and Threats Outlook

The Internal Audit Program

As a result of the focussed retail strategy, the company in the current
year has seen 20% of the revenues (Mustard Oil) materialising from
the retail segment. The Company in the year 2006-2007 has set up an
ambitious target of raising this share to 50% which will result not
only in better realisations and profits but also in a brand driven
marketing thrust. The company’s initiative in making available its
branded mustard oil products to retail customers will result in 5%
incremental margins over wholesale sales.

The internal audit program, besides checking reliability of financial
information also ensures the effectiveness and efficiency of internal
control system and suggests the ways to further strengthen our
internal controls to meet the requirement of growing business.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations
K S Oils is a professionally managed Company which employs the
best talent in the industry and continues its efforts to improve the
most important capital of the Company namely, the Human
Resources. The Company is implementing better HR policies by
making appreciable changes, resulting in the form of improved
efficiency. With the rapid changes in the business environment
importance has, therefore been given for training and development
of employees to augment the managerial and professional skills.
The Company maintained cordial industrial relations with its
employees which yielded the Company improved productivity, quality
and efficiency.

With the changing dynamics in the world of business, the company
has to look at every way of growing and adding value – organic and
inorganic. Thus, we have consciously taken a two fold approach to
our vision of becoming a Rs. 1,000 crore plus company in FY 2006-07
- increasing our current capacities and looking in a big way at
acquisitions of companies that match our culture, augment our line
of business and add value to our company.

Risk and Concerns
The Company’s key inputs are agriculture based and are sourced
from the domestic and international markets. The prices of agriculture
commodities are dependant upon factors like good and timely
monsoons, proper weather conditions, demand & supply position,
foreign exchange risk and Government Policies.

Segmentwise Performance
The various segments identified by the Company are as under
Oil and Refinery
- Crude Mustard & Refined Oils
Vanaspati
- Vanaspati Ghee
Solvent Extraction - Seed Extraction

Besides commodity risks as stated above Company is also exposed
to foreign exchange risk because of crude edible oil imports and
rapeseed oil meal and soya oil meal exports. The commodity risks
are not significant considering the normal co-relation in the price of
raw materials and finished goods.

The detail performance segment wise is given in schedule ‘N’ to the
audited accounts of the Company as provided in this Annual Report.

Cautionary Statement
Statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis
describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates,
expectations may be “Forward–looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual result
could differ from those expressed or implied. Important factors that
could make a difference to the Company’s operations include
economic conditions affecting demand - supply and price conditions
in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates,
changes in the Government Regulations, tax laws and other statutes
and other incidental factors.

The Company adopts continuous risk-monitoring system and
systematically hedges its foreign exchange risks.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy
Internal Control Systems are implemented
 To safeguard the Company’s assets from loss or damage.
 To keep constant check on cost structure and process loss.
 To provide adequate financial and accounting controls and
implement in accounting standards.
 To maintain proper accounting records and statutory compliances.
 The appropriate use of Company’s funds.
The systematic implementation of Internal Control Systems and
policies have resulted in the use of funds in the most profitable and
appropriate manner. All this has been implemented in every area
commencing from raw materials to finished products.
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Corporate
Governance
Report
1) Company’s Philosophy on Corporate
Governance

2) Board of Directors
Composition and Category
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of an optimum
combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Directors, to ensure the independent functioning of the Board. The
composition of the Board of Directors with reference to number of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors, meets with the requirements
of Clause 49 (I) (A) of the Listing Agreement.

Corporate Governance is a vital part of K S Oils value system as it
builds confidence and trust which leads to more stable and sustained
resource flows and long term relationship with its investors and
other stakeholders. The driving forces of Corporate Governance at
K S Oils are its core values – Excellence and Customer Satisfaction,
Maximising Long Term Value for Stakeholders, Good Corporate
Conduct and Environment Friendly.

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member on more than 10
Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees [as per
Clause 49 (IV) (B)] across all the Companies in which they are Director.
All the Directors have made the requisite disclosures regarding
Committee positions held by them in other Companies.

The Company is fully committed to follow the procedures and
practices in conformity with the clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
of the Stock Exchanges, as applicable, your Directors present the
Company’s Report on Corporate Governance as under

The Composition of the Board of Directors and also the number
of other Board Committees in which they are Chairman/ Member
are as under
Name of Director

Category of
Directorship

Designation

Mr. R.C. Garg
Mr. G.P. Garg
Mr. Sourabh Garg
Mr. M.L. Garg 1
Mr. P.K. Mandloi
Mr. B.N. Singh
Dr. R.S. Sisodia 2

Promoter - Non Executive
Promoter - Executive
Promoter - Executive
Promoter - Non Executive
Independent
Independent
Independent

Chairman
Managing Director
Executive Director
-

Directorship
in other
Companies
-

No. of Board
Committees in which
Chairman/Member *
Chairman
Member
1
1
1
1
-

1
1
3
1
1
2

1) Mr. M.L. Garg resigned with effect from 3rd September, 2005.
2) Dr. R.S. Sisodia joined the Board with effect from 3rd September, 2005.
* For this purpose only 3 committees namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Investors Grievances Committee have been considered across all
the Companies in which the Director is a Member or Chairman.

42

The Board is kept apprised of the overall performance of the
Company by the Managing Director at the Board Meetings.

Board Procedure
The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly
performance and the financial results. The Board Meetings are
generally scheduled well in advance and the notice of each Board
Meeting is given in writing to each Director. The information as
required under Annexure I to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
is made available to the Board. The Agenda and Board notes for
consideration of the Board are circulated well in advance with the
notice of meeting so that all the Directors can actively participate in
the extensive and fruitful deliberations on various agenda items
put before the Board for discussion. The Board is also free to
recommend the inclusion of any matter for discussion in
consultation with the Chairman.

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last
Annual General Meeting
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2006, Seven Board
Meetings were held on following dates and the maximum time gap
between two meetings did not exceed four months
1)
2)
3)
4)

30th April, 2005
20th July, 2005
3rd September, 2005
10th October, 2005

5) 26th October, 2005
6) 23rd December, 2005
7) 30th January, 2006

Name of the Director

Meetings held
during the tenure
of Directors

No. of Board
Meetings
Attended

Attendance at the last
AGM held on
30th September, 2005

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg

7

7

Present

Mr. Govind Prasad Garg

7

7

Present

Mr. Sourabh Garg

7

7

Present

Mr. Mohan Lal Garg a

3

3

Present

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

7

7

Present

Mr. B. N. Singh

7

7

Present

Dr. R. S. Sisodia b

5

5

Present

a) Mr. Mohan Lal Garg resigned with effect from 3rd September, 2005.
b) Mr. R.S. Sisodia joined the Board with effect from 3rd September, 2005.
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During the financial year 2005-06, Five Audit Committee Meetings
were held as under

3) Audit Committee
Terms of Reference
The Audit Committee has been constituted as per Section 292 A of
the Companies Act, 1956 and the guidelines set out in the Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The Audit Committee of the
Company, inter-alia, provides assurance to the Board on the existence
and adequacy of an effective internal control systems that ensures
 Efficiency and Effectiveness of Internal control and Audit.
 Safeguarding of Assets and Adequacy of provisions for liabilities.
 Reliability of all financial and other information and adequacy of
disclosures.
 Compliance with all relevant statutes.







30th April, 2005
20th July, 2005
3rd September, 2005
26th October, 2005
30th January, 2006

The Audit Committee as on 31st March , 2006 comprises of three
non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. B. N. Singh
Mr. P. K. Mandloi
Dr. R. S. Sisodia

The terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance
with the requirements of clause 49 (II) of the Listing Agreement
and as specified by the Board of Directors of the Company and
inter-alia includes
 Reviewing the company’s financial reporting process and disclosure
of financial information.
 Reviewing the quarterly and annual financial statements with
primary focus on accounting policies and practices, compliances
with accounting standards and legal requirements concerning
financial statements.
 Reviewing the adequacy of internal control system and internal
audit function, ensuring compliance of internal control systems
and reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management
policies.
 Recommending the appointment and removal of statutory
auditors, fixation of audit fees and also to approve payment of
other services.
 Reviewing the reports furnished by the internal auditors and
statutory auditors and ensures suitable follow-up thereon.

-

Chairman
Member
Member

- Independent
- Independent
- Independent

Attendance of Members at the meetings of the Audit Committee
held during 2005-06
Members

Meetings held
during the tenure
of Directors

No. of
meetings
attended

Mr. B. N. Singh (Chairman)

5

5

Mr. M. L. Garg a

3

3

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

5

5

b

3

3

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

a) Mr. M. L. Garg resigned with effect from 3rd September, 2005.
b) Dr. R. S. Sisodia Co-opted as member of the committee with effect
from 3rd September, 2005.

Mr. Vikas Tulsiani, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Committee.

4) Remuneration Committee

The Audit Committee while reviewing the Annual Financial
Statements also reviewed the applicability of various Accounting
Standards (AS) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India during the year. Compliance of the Auditor Standards as
applicable to the Company has been ensured in the Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

Terms of Reference
The broad terms of reference of the Committee are to appraise the
performance of Managing/ Executive Directors, determine and
recommend to the Board, Compensation payable to Managing/
Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee of the Company as on 31st March, 2006
comprised of the following three Directors of the Company

Composition and Attendance
The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions
of Clause 49 (II) (A) of the Listing Agreement and the Companies
Act, 1956. All the Members of Audit Committee possess knowledge
of Corporate Finance, Accounts and Company law.
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Mr. P. K. Mandloi

Chairman

Mr. B. N. Singh

Member

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

Member

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors during the Financial
Year ended 31st March, 2006.

The Remuneration Committee held its meeting on 30th April, 2005.
Attendance of Members at the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee held during 2005-06

Director
Members

Position

Meetings held
during the tenure
of Directors

No. of
meetings
attended

Mr. P. K. Mandloi (Chairman)

1

1

Mr. R. C. Garg

Chairman

Mr. M. L. Garg a

1

1

Mr. G. P. Garg

Mr. B. N. Singh

1

1

Dr. R. S. Sisodia b

-

-

Sitting
Fees

Salaries &
other
Perquisites

(in Rs.)

(in Rs.)

35,000

-

M. D.

-

9,99,000

Mr. S. Garg

E. Director

-

3,16,000

Mr. M. L. Garg 1

Director

15,000

-

a) Mr. M. L. Garg resigned with effect from 3rd September, 2005.

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

Director

60,000

-

b) Dr. R. S. Sisodia joined the committee with effect from 3rd September, 2005.

Mr. B. N. Singh

Director

60,000

-

Remuneration Policy
Subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and the subsequent
approval by the shareholders at the General Body Meeting and such
authorities as the case may be, remuneration of the Managing/
whole–time Directors is fixed by the Remuneration Committee.
The remuneration is fixed considering various factors such as
qualification, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration in the
competitive industries, financial position of the Company, etc. The
remuneration structure comprises basic salary, commission,
perquisites and allowances, contribution to provident fund and other
funds in accordance with various related provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The remuneration policy for whole-time Director is directed
towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements.
The non-executive Directors have not drawn any remuneration from
the Company except sitting fees for meetings of the Board and
committees attended by them. The Board, on the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee approves the annual increments.
The Board fixes a ceiling on perquisites and allowances as a percentage
of salary. Within the prescribed ceiling, the perquisite package is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee.

Dr. R. S. Sisodia 2

Director

40,000

-

1) Mr. M. L. Garg resigned with effect from 3rd September, 2005.
2) Dr. R. S. Sisodia joined the committee with effect from 3rd September, 2005.

Notes :
a)

The Salary and perquisites include all fixed elements of
remuneration i.e. salary and other allowance and benefits as per
the terms and conditions of appointment.
b) The company has not entered in to any pecuniary relationship
or transactions with the non-executive Directors.
c) The company does not pay any performance linked incentives
to the Directors.
d) The compensation paid to non-executive Directors including
independent Directors is within the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 1956, therefore requirement of prior approval
of Shareholder shall not apply.
e) The company has so far not issued any stock options.
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Details of Service Contracts
Name

Date of last
appointment

Current
tenure

From

To

Mr. Govind Prasad Garg

1st June, 2002

5 years

1st June, 2002

31st May, 2007

Mr. Sourabh Garg

1st June, 2002

5 years

1st June, 2002

31st May, 2007

30th June, 2006*

5 years

1st June, 2007

31st May, 2012

30th June, 2006**

5 years

1st July, 2007

30th June, 2011

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg

* Re-appointed/ ** Appointed by the Board of directors at their meeting held on 30th June, 2006, subject to the approval of members at the ensuing Annual
general meeting. For any termination of service contract, the Company and the executive Director are required to give a notice of six months or such shorter
notice as may be mutually agreed by them or in lieu of notice, payment by the Company or by executive Director to the Company, equivalent to six months last

drawn remuneration.

Details of shareholding of Non-Executive Directors.
Name

No. of shares held

Mr. Ramesh Chand Garg

3,28,200

Mr. P. K. Mandloi

-

Mr. B. N. Singh

-

Dr. R. S. Sisodia

Usually a reply is sent with in 15 days of receipt of letter, except in the
cases that are constrained by dispute or legal impediment.

5) Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievances Committee
The Company has a Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievance Committee,
to redress Investors’ complaints and requests such as delay in transfer
of shares, non-receipt of dividend, annual report, revalidation of
dividend warrants, etc.
The Committee meets at least once a month and deals with various
matters relating to
 Transfer - transmission - transposition of shares;
 Issue of Share Certificates for lost, sub-divided, consolidated,
rematerialised, defaced, etc;
 Consolidation/ Splitting of folios;
 Review of Shares dematerialised and all other related matters;
 Investors’ Grievances and redress mechanism and to recornmend
measures to improve the level of Investor services.

Composition and Attendance
The quorum for functioning of the Committee is any two directors
present. Twenty Four meetings of the Committee were held during
the year. The meetings were held on 15th April, 2005, 30th April, 2005,
16th May, 2005, 30th May, 2005, 15th June, 2005, 30th June, 2005,
15th July, 2005, 30th July, 2005, 16th August, 2005, 30th August, 2005,
15th September, 2005, 30th September, 2005, 15th October, 2005,
31st October, 2005, 15th November, 2005, 30th November, 2005,
15th December, 2005, 30th December, 2005, 16th January, 2006,
30th January, 2006, 15th February, 2006, 28th February 2006,
16th March, 2006, and 30th March, 2006. The minutes of the
Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee are noted by the
Board of Directors at the Board Meetings.

The Share Department of the Company and the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents, Ankit Consultancy (P.) Ltd., Indore, attend all
grievances/correspondences expeditiously of the Shareholders’ and
Investors’ received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges,
Department of Company Affairs, Registrar of Companies, etc.
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Member

Meetings held during
the tenure of Directors

Number of
Meetings attended

14

14

10

10

Mr. Govind Prasad Garg

24

16

Mr. Sourabh Garg

24

15

Mr. R. C. Garg (Chairman) a
Mr. M. L. Garg

b

a) Mr. R.C. Garg joined the Committee as Chairman there of w.e.f. 3rd September, 2005.
b) Mr. M.L. Garg resigned with effect from 3rd September, 2005.

The total number of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders during the year under review were 47. There were no complaints
pending as on 31st March, 2006, that has not been resolved to the satisfaction of the Shareholders nor is there any pending transfer.
Mr. Vikas Tulsiani, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

6) General Body Meeting
Details of the General Meetings held and special resolution passed in the last three years
Year

Date

Day

Meeting Location

Time

27th Sept.,
2003

Saturday

T. R. Puram,
A. B. Road,
Morena – 476 001,
(M. P.)

4.00 p.m.

2003-04

25th Sept.,
2004

Saturday

4.00 p.m..

2004-05

30th Sept.,
2005

Friday

T. R. Puram,
A. B. Road,
Morena – 476 001
(M. P.)
Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena – 476 001,
(M. P.)
(Registered Office)

I - Annual General Meeting
2002-03

II - Extra Ordinary General Meeting
2004-05
29th Jan.,
2005

Saturday

Jiwaji Ganj,
Morena – 476 001,
(M. P.)
(Registered Office)
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Details of Special Resolution

1) Delisting of equity shares
from Jaipur Stock Exchange.
2) Delisting of equity shares
from Delhi Stock Exchange.
3) Alterations in the Articles of
Association for prescribing
the maximum number of
Directorship for a Director.
1) Variation in the terms of
appointment of Managing Director.
2) Re-issue of forfeited shares.

4.00 p.m.

1) Amendment of Memorandum
of Association consequent to
increase in authorised capital.
2) Amendment of Articles of
Association consequent to
increase in authorised capital.

11.00 a.m.

1) Alteration in the Articles of
association for incorporating
enabling provisions to issue
convertible securities.
2) Issuance of warrants.

Postal Ballot
During the year under review none of the resolutions was required
to be put through postal ballot.

e) Management’s Discussion and Analysis
A Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part
of the Annual Report and includes the discussions on various
matters specified in the Listing Agreement.

Code of conduct
The Code of conduct for the Directors and the senior management
of the Company have been laid down by the Board and the same is
posted on the website of the Company. All board members and
senior management personnel have affirmed their compliance with
the code. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director
of the company is annexed to the corporate governance Report.

f) CEO/ CFO Certification
A certificate from Chairman, Managing Director and Finance Head
on the financial statements of the Company was placed before
the Board.
g) Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures
The Company has complied with all requirements of the
Listing Agreements entered into with the Stock Exchanges
as well as the regulations and guidelines of SEBI.
Consequently, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by
either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority
for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets
during the last three years.

7) Compliance with other Mandatory Requirements
I)

Subsidiary Companies
There is no subsidiary of the Company.

II) Disclosures
a) Related Party Transactions
During the year there were no materially significant transactions
of the Company, with its Promoters, the Directors or the
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The
details of all transactions if any, with related parties are placed
before the audit committee on quarterly basis.

8) Means of Communication


b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
In the preparation of financial statements, the company has
followed the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India to the extent applicable.





c) Disclosure on Risk Management
The Company has laid down procedure to inform Board
members about the risk assessment and minimisation procedure.
These would be periodically reviewed to ensure that executive
management control risks through means of a properly defined
framework.



The quarterly financial results of the Company are published in
The Economic Times, Financial Express, Business Standard,
Nav Bharat Times (Hindi Edition) and Dianik Bhaskar
(Hindi Edition). The Company regularly intimates un-audited
and audited financial results to the Stock Exchanges immediately
after these are taken on record by the Board.
The Company’s financial results and official news releases are
displayed on the Company’s website www.ksoils.com
The media releases on significant developments in the
Company as also presentations that have been made from time
to time to the press are hosted on the Company’s website.
As the Company’s quarterly financial results are published in
press and also posted on its Website, the same are not mailed to
the Shareholders.

9) General Shareholders Information
Registered Office
Phone
Fax
Email
Website

d) Utilisation of proceeds from the Preferential Issue of
Convertible Warrants
The Company has converted 35,00,000 warrants into 35,00,000
equity shares on 26th October, 2005, and the same was listed
on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. on 6th February, 2006.

:
:
:
:
:

Jiwaji Ganj, Morena - 476 001, M. P.
(07532) - 233951-59, 405051-57
(07532) - 405060
secy@ksoils.com
www.ksoils.com

Annual General Meeting
Date
: 29th July, 2006
Time
: 4.00 p.m.
Venue
: Registered office of the Company
Jiwaji Ganj , Morena- 476 001, M.P.

The details of utilisation of proceeds raised through issue of
convertible warrants are disclosed to the Audit Committee. The
company has utilised these funds for purposes stated in notice
convening the extra ordinary general meeting on 29th Jan., 2005.
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.,
2nd Floor, Alankar Point, 4 A Rajgarh Kothi,
Gita Bhawan Chouraha, Indore - 452 001 (M.P.)
Tel : (0731) - 2491298, 2495226
Fax : (0731) - 4065798
Email : ankitind@sancharnet.in
Time : 10.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m.

No special resolution is proposed to be passed by Postal ballot at
the aforesaid Annual General Meeting.
Financial Calendar (tentative)

Adoption of
Quarterly
Results Ended

In the month of

30th June, 2006

July, 2006

(3rd/4th week)

30th September, 2006

October, 2006

(3rd/4th week)

31st December, 2006

January, 2007

(3rd /4th week)

31st March, 2007

April, 2007

(3rd/4th week)

Share Transfer System
Share transfers in physical form are registered by the Registrars and
returned to the respective transferee within a period from two to
three weeks, provided the documents lodged with the Registrars/
Company are clear in all respects. In case of shares in electronic form,
the transfers are processed by National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
through respective Depository Participants. In compliance with the
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a practicing Company
Secretary audits the system of Transfer and a Certificate to that effect
is issued.

(Un-audited Annual Accounts)

Date of Book Closure
From 25th July, 2006 to 29th July, 2006 (both days inclusive).
Dividend
The Board of directors had a meeting on 29th April, 2006 where it
announced an interim dividend for 2005-06 at the rate of 12%
(Rs. 1.20) per share. All eligible Shareholders recorded as on
8th May, 2006 were paid this dividend on 21st May, 2006. This interim
dividend will be treated by the board of directors as the dividend
payable for 2005-06, upon declaration by Shareholders at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

Market Price Data
Monthly Highs and Lows for FY 2006 at BSE
Month

K. S. Oils
(High)

K. S. Oils
(Low)

Volume
No. of
Shares

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd., Mumbai and the Madhya Pradesh Stock Exchange,
Indore. The Company has paid the Annual Listing fees for the
financial year 2006-07 based on the Share Capital as at 31st March,
2006 to the Stock Exchanges on which Equity Shares of the Company
are presently listed.
The Company has also applied for additional listing of the Equity
Shares of the Company at the National Stock Exchange Ltd.,
Mumbai, having nation wide terminals in order to provide more
liquidity to all the members and investors and is making all the
efforts for obtaining listing of shares.
Stock Code
BSE, Mumbai – 526209
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN)
INE727D01014 (with NSDL and CDSL)
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Apr-05

54.65

42.00

8,85,153

May-05

53.80

41.75

8,37,574

Jun-05

73.00

48.75

23,77,216

Jul-05

93.80

64.05

26,11,390

Aug-05

88.95

78.15

12,17,959

Sep-05

112.00

76.05

31,19,280

Oct-05

83.00

62.00

7,67,548

Nov-05

87.70

76.00

3,63,037

Dec-05

98.00

78.10

12,90,164

Jan-06

115.00

92.00

25,39,632

Feb-06

142.80

98.05

33,05,817

Mar-06

200.40

142.50

58,73,997

K. S. Oils Ltd. Share price versus the BSE Sensex
250.00

12000

K S Oils Share Price on BSE

8000
150.00
6000
100.00
4000

50.00

BSE SENSEX (Pts.)

10000

200.00

K.S. Oils (High)
K.S. Oils (Low)
BSE Sensex (Close)

2000

0.00

0
Apr-05

May-05

Jun-05

Jul-05

Aug-05

Sep-05

Oct-05

Nov-05

Dec-05

Jan-06

Feb-06

Mar-06

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2006
No. of Equity
Shares held
Up to
1,001
2,001
3,001
4,001
5,001
10,001

No. of
Shareholders

Percentage of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares

3,552
469
193
95
230
230
284
5,053

70.29
9.28
3.82
1.88
4.55
4.55
5.63
100.00

3,21,726
89,849
55,081
36,925
1,14,273
1,99,114
75,75,932
83,92,900

1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
10,000
and above
Total

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2006
Category

No. of
Shares held

A Promoter’s Holding
1) Promoters
a) Indian Promoters
b) Foreign Promoters
2) Person acting in concert

Percentage of
Shareholding
3.83
1.07
0.65
0.43
1.36
2.37
90.29
100.00

Percentage of
Share Capital

25,77,875
4,200
25,82,075

30.715
0.050
30.765

600

0.007

6,67,014
6,67,614

7.948
7.955

11,65,590
39,73,256
4,365
-

13.888
47.340
0.052
-

Sub-Total

51,43,211

61.280

Grand Total

83,92,900

100.000

Sub-Total
B) Non - Promoter’s Holding
3) Institutional Investors
a) Mutual Funds and UTI
b) Banks, Financial Institutions, InsuranceCompanies
(Central/ State Government Institutions/ Non-Government Institutions)
c) FIIs
Sub-Total
4) Others
a) Private Corporate Bodies
b) Indian Public
c) NRIs/ OCBs
d) Any Other

50

Dematerialisation of Shares
The trading in Company’s shares is permitted only in dematerialised form. In order to enable the Shareholders to hold their shares in D-mat form, the
Company has enlisted its shares with National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
Status of De-materialisation as on March 31st, 2006
No. of Shares Dematerialised
No. of Shareholders in D’mat form

80,62,280
2,748

96.06 % of the total Share capital
54.38 % of the total no. of Shareholders

Outstanding Securities
As on 31st March, 2006 there are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments.
Plant Location of the Company
The Company has its manufacturing facility at
A.B. Road, Industrial Area, Morena – 476 001 (M.P.)
Tel.
: (07532) - 232881 to 84
Fax
: (07532) - 232885
Email : works@ksoils.com
Address for Correspondence
Shareholders are requested to contact Mr. Vikas Tulsiani, Company Secretary, K. S. Oils Limited
Jiwaji Ganj, Morena – 476 001 (M.P.)
Tel.
: (07532) - 233951-59, 405051-57
Fax
: (07532) - 405060
Email : secy@ksoils.com
Website : www.ksoils.com

10) Non - Mandatory Requirements
1)

Remuneration Committee
The Company has constituted Remuneration Committee details whereof are given at Sr. No. 4 of this report.

2) Shareholder Rights
The quarterly financial results are published in the newspapers as mentioned under the heading “Means of Communication” at Sr. No. 8 herein
above and also displayed on the website of the Company. The results are not separately circulated to the shareholders.

Declaration by Managing Director
I, Govind Prasad Garg, Managing Director of K. S. Oils Limited, hereby confirm pursuant to clause 49(1) (D) of the listing agreement, that: The
Board of Directors of K. S. Oils Limited has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management of the Company. The
said code of conduct has also been posted in the Company’s website viz. www.ksoils.com
All the board members and senior management personnel have affirmed their compliance with the said code of conduct for year ended
30th June, 2006.
Morena
30th June, 2006

Govind Prasad Garg
Managing Director
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Auditors’
Report
c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account

To the Members of K. S. Oils Limited
We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of K. S. Oils Limited as
at 31st March, 2006, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report comply
with the accounting standards referred to in section 211(3C)
of the Companies Act,1956

financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the Directors, as on 31st March, 2006 and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2006 from being appointed
as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section
274 of the Companies Act, 1956
f) In our opinion and to the best of our in information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts
read together with notes thereon give the information required
by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India;

We report as follows
1) As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we
enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

a) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2006.
b) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the ‘Profit’ for
the year ended on that date.
c) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for
the year ended on that date.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

2) Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in Paragraph
1 above, we report that
a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the company so far, as appears from our
examination of those books.

Gwalior
30th June, 2006
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R.S.Rathi
(Partner)
M.No.12121

firm or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Annexure refer to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

b) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and
conditions on which loans have been taken from companies,
firm or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the interest of the company.

b) As explained to us, most of the fixed assets have been
physically verified by the management during the year in a
phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable,
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

c) The company is regular in repaying the principal amounts as
stipulated and has been regular in the payment of interest.
iv)

c) In our opinion, the company has not disposed of substantial
part of fixed assets during the year and the going concern
status of the company is not affected.
ii) a) As explained to us, Inventories have been physically verified
by the management at reasonable intervals during the year.
In our opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable.
b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the company and the
nature of its business.

v) a) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance
of contract or arrangements, that needed to be entered into
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 have been so entered.

c) The company has maintained proper records of inventories.
As explained to us, there were no material discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared
to the book records.
iii) a)

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
systems commensurate with the size of the company and
the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory
and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. To
the best of our knowledge, no major weaknesses in internal
control were either reported or noticed by us during the
course of our audit.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transaction of purchase of
goods and material and sale of goods, material and services
made in pursuance of contract or arrangement entered in
the register maintained under section 301 and aggregating
during the year to Rs. 5,00,000 (Rs. Five Lacs ) or more in

The company had taken loan from the parties covered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved during the year
was Rs. 859.32 Lacs and the year end balance of loan taken
from such parties was Rs. 859.32 Lacs. The company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,

respect of each party have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices for
53

such goods, material and services as the prices at which
transactions for similar goods, material and services have
been made with other parties.
vi)

vii)

viii)

ix) a)

ix) b)

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company had not accepted any
deposits during the year hence the provisions of section
58-A and 58-AA or any other relevant provision and the
rules made thereunder with regard to deposit does not apply.
We have been further informed by the company that no
order has been passed by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India
or any court or any other tribunal.
The company has an ‘Internal Audit System’ carried through
a firm of Chartered Accountants. In our opinion, the scope
and coverage of audit needs to be strengthened to
commensurate with its size and nature of business.
The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of Cost
records under section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956
in respect of company’s ‘Vanaspati and Refinery’ product.
We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records of the
company in this connection and are of the opinion, that
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained, though the contents of these accounts
have not been examined by us.
According to the records of the company, undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues have
been generally regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2006
for a period of more than six months from the date of
becoming payable.
According to the information and explanations given to us
and record of the company examined by us the disputed
statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 195.47 Lacs, that have not
been deposited on account of matters pending before
appropriate authorities are as under
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Sr.
Name
No. of the
Statue

Nature of
the Dues

Forum
were
dispute
is pending

1)

Sales/
Commercial/
Entry Tax

Deputy/
195.47
Additional,
Commissioner,
Sales Tax

Sales
Tax Act

Amount
(Rs. in Lacs)

x)

The company has no accumulated losses as at 31st March,
2006 and it has not incurred any cash loss in the financial
year ended on that date or in immediately preceding
financial year.

xi)

Based on our audit procedures and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to financial institutions or banks. The company
has not issued any debentures.

xii)

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not granted loans and advances on
the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

xiii)

In our opinion, the company is not a Chit Fund or a
Nidhi/ Mutual Benefit Fund/ Society. Therefore, clause
4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003
is not applicable to the company.

xiv)

The company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments. Accordingly the
provisions of clause 4 (xiv) of the Companies (Auditors’
Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the company.

xv)

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not given any guarantee for loans
taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

xvi)

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, on an overall basis the Term
loans have been applied for the purpose for which they
were raised.

xvii)

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet

and Cash Flow Statement of the company, we report that
funds amounting Rs. 677.00 Lacs raised on long term
basis used for short term purposes (previous year Rs.
88.31 Lacs raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term investments).
xviii)

xix)

The company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares during the year to parties and companies covered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

xx)

The company has not raised any money through public
issue during the year.

xxi)

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the company
has been noticed or reported during the year, that causes
the financial statements to be materially misstated.
For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

The company has no secured debentures outstanding and
accordingly clause 4 (xix) is not applicable.

Gwalior
30th June, 2006
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R. S. Rathi
Partner
M.No.12121

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2006

(Rs. in Lacs)

Schedule

Current Year

Previous Year

845
0
3,726
105

495
219
1,799
111

C
D

7,877
859
13,412

7,414
0
10,038

E

5,973
1,590
4,383

4,474
1,314
3,160

15,522
1,541
608
30
537
18,238

11,444
1,728
715
23
349
14,259

8,753
456
9,209

7,211
170
7,381

9,029

6,878

13,412

10,038

Sources of Funds
Shareholders Funds
Share Capital
Equity Share Entitlement Warrants
Reserves & Surplus
Deferred Government Grant

A
B

Loans Funds
Unsecured Loans
Total
Application Of Funds
Fixed Assets
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation
Net Block

F

Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash & Bank Balances
Other Current Assets
Loans & Advances
Less
Current Liabilities & Provisions
Current Liabilities
Provisions

G

Net Current Assets (F-G)
Total
N

Significant Accounting Policies, Contingent Liabilities &
Notes to the Accounts
(as per our separate report of even date attached)

For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Govind Prasad Garg

Sourabh Garg

(Managing Director)

(Director)

R.S.Rathi
Partner
M. No. 12121

Gwalior
30th June, 2006

Vikas Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)
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Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2006

(Rs. in Lacs)

Schedule
Income
Sales
Domestic Sales
Less: Excise Duty
Export Sales
Other Income
Total
Expenditure
Raw Material & Purchases
Manufacturing Expenses
Selling Expenses
Administrative & Other Expenses

H
I
J
K

Add: Opening Stock

L

Less: Closing Stock

M

Operating Profit
Interest
Depreciation on Fixed Assets
Profit before Taxation
Provision for Taxation
Income Tax on Assessment
Profit after Taxation
Balance brought forward from Previous Year
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations
Dividend
Interim
Final (Proposed)
Tax on Dividend
Transfer to General Reserve
Surplus carried forward
Total
Earning Per Share (Rs.)
Basic/Diluted

Current Year

Previous Year

56,265
2
56,263
4,555
60,818
44
60,862

42,782
265
42,517
2,729
45,246
55
45,301

55,166
2,512
1,381
1,307
60,366
8,462
68,828
10,726
58,102
2,760
715
285
1,760
243
0
1,517
845
2,362

42,295
1,679
993
793
45,760
6,567
52,327
8,462
43,865
1,436
771
253
412
75
1
336
615
951

101
0
14
50
2,197
2,362

0
49
7
50
845
951

23.71

6.87

(as per our separate report of even date attached.)

For Rathi & Co.

Govind Prasad Garg

Sourabh Garg

(Managing Director)

(Director)

Chartered Accountants

R.S.Rathi
Partner
M. No. 12121

Gwalior
30th June, 2006

Vikas Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)
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Cash Flow Statement Annexed to the Balance Sheet for the Year Ended 31st March, 2006
(A)

(B)

(C)

Cash Flow From Operating Activities Net Profit Before Tax & Extraordinary Item
Adjustment For:
Depreciation
Depreciation on Government Grant
Profit/Loss on sale of assets
Interest received
Interest paid
Provision for taxation
Income Tax Paid for Previous years
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustment For:
Trade & Other Receivables
Inventories
Trade Payables & Provisions
Cash Generated from Operations
Interest paid
Cash Flow before extraordinary items
Net Cash from Operating Activities
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
(Net of Creditors for Capital Goods)
Sale of Fixed Assets
Capital WIP
Interest received
Subsidy Received
Sale of Investment
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceed from issue of share capital/premium
Proceed from Long term borrowing
Dividend Paid
Unsecured Loans
Net Cash used in Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents
(A+B+C)
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent

For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Rs. in Lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

1,760

412

285
-6
-1
-26
715
-243
-16
2,468

253
0
-3
-20
771
-75
-1
1,337

8
-4,078
1,533
-69
-715
-784
-784

792
-2,061
1,656
1,724
-771
953
953

-533

-452

5
0
26
0
0
-502

23
19
20
92
0
-298

656
-280
-56
859
1,179
-107

219
-113
0
-443
-337
318

715
608

397
715

Govind Prasad Garg

Sourabh Garg

(Managing Director)

(Director)

R.S.Rathi
Partner
M. No. 12121

Gwalior
30th June, 2006

Vikas Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2006
Schedule A
Share Capital
Authorised 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(Previous Year 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
Issued, Subscribed & Paidup** 83,92,900 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(Previous Year 48,92,900 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
Shares Forfeited
(Amount paid up on 1,07,100 shares)
** Includes 35,00,000 Equity shares issued on conversion of warrants,
allotted during the financial year 2004-05 (Refer Note no. ‘18’ Sch - ‘N’)
Total
Schedule B
Reserves & Surplus
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last year
Share Premium Account
Balance as per last year
Add: Premiun Received on conversion of warrants.
General Reserve
Balance as per last year
Transfered from P. & L. Account
Profit & Loss Account

285
525
658
50
Total

Schedule C
Secured Loans
From Banks
On Term Loan Account
(Secured against mortgage, hypothecation of factory, land,
building, plant & machinery & first charge on all fixed
assets of the company)
On Working Capital Account
(Secured against hypothecation of stock of raw material, stock
in process, finished goods, by-products & guaranteed by Directors
& Second pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the company)
Total

(Rs. in Lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

1,500

1,000

839

489

6

6

845

495

11

11

810

285

708
2,197
3,726

658
845
1,799

461

741

7,416

6,673

7,877

7,414

859

0

859

0

Schedule D
Unsecured Loans
Other Loans & Advances
From Others
Total
59

60

Fixed Assets

119
135
486

Vehicles
Office Equipment
Utilities

452

4,043

Previous Year

21

13

0

0

0

13

0

0

0

0

0

0

Sales
during
the year

4,474

5,973

1,173

486

146

130

155

493

2,424

871

32

63

Total
as on
31/03/06

1,062

1,314

0

167

80

77

38

109

658

185

0

0

As on
01/04/05

253

285

1

26

15

12

15

33

148

32

0

3

Addition
for the
year

1

9

0

0

0

9

0

0

0

0

0

0

Deduction/
Adju. during
the year

Depreciation

1,314

1,590

1

193

95

80

53

142

806

217

0

3

Total as on
31/03/06

3,160

4,383

1,172

293

51

50

102

351

1,618

654

32

60

-

3,160

0

319

55

42

80

337

1,566

686

32

43

As on
As on
31/03/06 31/03/05

Net Block

(Rs. in Lacs).

Note
1) Addition in depreciation of Rs. 285 lacs includes the depreciation of Rs. 5.88 lacs as depreciation on machinery financed by government grant.

1,512

4,474

1,173

0

11

24

37

47

200

0

0

20

Addition
during
the year

Gross Block

Grand Total

0

118

Furniture & Fixtures

Wind Mills

446

Electric Installations

871

Building
2,224

32

Land (Freehold)

Plant & Machinery

43

Land (Leasehold)

As on
01/04/05

Description of Assets

Schedule E

..

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2006

(Rs. in Lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

30

23

4,297
10,498
147
81
499

2,480
7,626
660
177
501

15,522

11,444

1,541

72
1,656

50

69

201
357
608

297
349
715

17,701

13,910

165

164

Security Deposits

79

49

Sales Tax paid under Appeal

19

20

244

87

30

29

Total (B)

537

349

Grand Total (A+B)

18,238

14,259

Schedule F
Current Assets, Loans & Advances
(A) Current Assets
Interest Receivable
Inventories (As taken, valued & certified by Managing Director)
Raw Materials
Finished Goods
By Products
Packing Materials
Stores & Spares

Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for more than six months
Other Debts

115
1,426

Cash & Bank Balances
Cash in Hand
Cash at Bank
On Current Accounts
On Fixed Deposit Accounts (Refer note no.14 of Schedule - N)
Total (A)
(B) Loans & Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
(Advance recoverable in Cash or Kind or for value to be received)
Advance to Suppliers & Others

Advance Income Tax & Fringe Benefit Tax
Other Loans & Advances
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2006

(Rs. in Lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

4,066
979
3,060
546
99

3,769
0
3,224
133
84

3

1

Total (A)

8,753

7,211

Total (B)
Grand Total (A+B)

115
341
456
9,209

56
114
170
7,381

15,988
34,066
2,450
2,256
406

15,826
22,705
1,980
1,618
166

Total

55,166

42,295

Total

672
332
197
166
859
204
30
52
2,512

345
171
161
103
678
201
10
10
1,679

Schedule G
Current Liabilities & Provisions
A) Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors for Goods & Expenses
Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods
Security Deposit from Suppliers/Customers
Advance from Customers
Statutory & Other Liabilities Liability towards Investor Protection
and Education Fund under Sec 205C of the Companies Act, 1956
( Not Due as on 31/03/2006)
Unclaimed Dividend

(B) Provisions
Proposed Dividend/ Interim (Including Tax on dividend)
Provision for Taxation

Schedule H
Raw Material & Purchases
Oil Seed
Oil
Oil Cake
Packing Material
Trading Goods/By-Product

Schedule I
Manufacturing Expenses
Coal Consumed
Chemical Consumed
Repairs & Maintenance
Hexane Consumed
Power & Fuel
Wages
Other Manufacturing Expenses
Tin Manufacturing Expenses
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2006

(Rs. in Lacs)

Current Year

Previous Year

1,038
37
102
204

720
45
73
155

1,381

993

12
110
1
22
649
155
9
43
50
70
3
29
36
3
115

12
67
0
24
306
185
7
39
31
68
2
22
25
5
0

1,307

793

7,626
660
176

6,254
197
116

8,462

6,567

10,498
147
81

7,626
660
176

10,726

8,462

Schedule J
Selling Expenses
Transportation, Loading & Unloading
Packing Material
Brokerage
Sales Expenses
Total
Schedule K
Administrative & Other Expenses
Salary to Directors
Employees Remuneration & Benefit
Directors Medical Expenses
Postage, Telegram & Telephone Expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Bank Commission
Stationery & Printing Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance
Auditor’s Remuneration (Refer note no. ‘17’ of Schedule ‘N’)
Miscellaneous Expenses
Consultancy, Legal & Professional Charges
Financial Expenses
Exchange Rate Fluctuation
Total
Schedule L
Opening Stock
Finished Goods
By Products
Packing Materials
Total
Schedule M
Closing Stock
(As taken, valued & certified by Managing Director)
Finished Goods
By Products
Packing Materials
Total
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Schedule - N
Contingent Liabilities and Notes to Balance Sheet as
at 31st March, 2006

Foreign Currency Transactions
i) Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate prevailing
on the date of transaction or the rate realised. Current Assets
and Current Liabilities not covered by forward contracts are
translated at the year end exchange rates. Net loss/gain on such
transaction is recognised at the year end. Forward exchange
contracts are accounted for by amortising the difference between
the forward rate and the exchange rate on the date of the
transaction over the life of the contract.

A) Significant Accounting Policies
General
a) The company follows the Mercantile System of Accounting
and recognises Income and Expenditure on accrual basis. The
Accounts are prepared on historical cost basis as a going concern.
Accounting policies not referred to otherwise are consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Retirement Benefits
j) Contribution to Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund are charged
against revenue, Gratuity liability is paid to a Trust created for
the purpose jointly with Life Insurance Corporation of India
under Group Gratuity Scheme. The premium paid/ payable is
being charged to Profit and Loss Account on accrual basis.

Fixed Assets
b) Fixed Assets are stated at cost less depreciation.
Investments
c) Investments are stated ‘At cost’
Inventories
d) Inventories are values as under :

Grants
k) Government Grant related to specific fixed assets which are
depreciable, are treated as deferred income which is recognised in
the Profit and Loss Statement on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful life of the asset. Such allocation to income is
usually made over the periods and in the proportions in which
depreciation on related assets is charged.

Raw Material : ‘At Cost’
Finished Goods &
Trading Goods

: ‘At cost or Net Realisable
Value’ whichever is less

Packing Material

:

‘At Cost’

Stores & Spares

:

‘At Cost’

Borrowing Cost
l) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of fixed assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
the assets up to the date the assets is put to use. Other borrowing
cost are charged to the Profit & Loss account in the year in which
they are incurred.

Revenue Recognition
e) Sales are recognised on passing of property in goods i.e. delivery
as per terms, consignment sales is recognised on receipt of Sale
Report from Consignees, net of Consignment Expenses, Sales
is booked excluding excise duty.
f) Inter-unit transfers of goods are shown as contra items in the
Profit and Loss Account to reflect the true economic vale of the
production inter-se the unit which has no impact on the profits
of the Company.
g) Entitlement in terms of duty-free imports of raw-materials,
others benefits and duty draw back against export are being
accounted for on realisation basis.

Taxes on Income
m) Current tax is amount of tax payable on the taxable income for
the year determined in accordance with provisions of Income-tax
Act, 1961.
n) Deferred tax liability has been determined in accordance with
Accounting Standard -22-Accounting for Taxes on Income issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, based on
timing difference expected to arise in foreseeable future. Deferred
taxation benefit are recognised where there is a virtual certainty
of sufficient future taxable income.

Depreciation
h) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on ‘Straight Line
Method’ except on assets of Oil & Refinery Division where it
is provided on ‘Written Down Value Method’ at the rates and
in the manner specified in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act,
1956. Leasehold land is being amortised over the period of
lease.

Provisions & Contingent Liabilities
o) Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal and
constructive obligation as a result of past event , for which it is
probable that a cash out flow will be required and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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p) Contingent liabilities are not provided for and are disclosed by
way of notes to the accounts.
q) Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

9) Finished Goods Stock includes goods sent on consignment
Rs. 54.74 Lacs [previous year Rs. 69.13 Lacs] against which advance
received Rs. 39.26 Lacs [previous year Rs. 24.47 Lacs]. Raw
Materials includes Goods at Port of Rs. 105.01 Lacs (previous
year Rs. 74.73 Lacs).

B) Notes to the Accounts
1) Claims against the Company debts not acknowledged as ‘Nil’

10) Installments of Term Loan due within 12 months are Rs. 378.00
Lacs [previous year Rs. 274.33 Lacs].

2) Contingent Liabilities in respect of

i)

Year ended
31/03/2006

Year ended
31/03/2005

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

81.64

99.79

Nil

131.33

0.55

10.92

Nil

22.62

Outstanding Bank

11) Interest paid includes

Guarantees
ii) Letter of Credits
iii) Capital Commitments [Net]
iv) Excise duty & Custom demands

Year ended
31/03/2006

Year ended
31/03/2005

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

63.29

90.70

584.35

588.26

Nil

44.71

67.47

47.62

To Bank
On loan for Fixed Period
On other Loans
To others

3) In the opinion of ‘Board of Directors’, the Current Assets, Loans
and Advances are approximately of the value as stated, if realised,
inthe ordinary course of business. Some of the Advances, Sundry
Debtors, Sundry Creditors and Security Deposit from customers
are taken as per books awaiting their respective confirmation.

On loan for fixed Period
On others

12) Managerial remuneration under section 198 of the Companies
Act, 1956

4) Previous year figures have been re-arranged or re-grouped wherever
necessary.
5) A demand of Rs. 195.47 Lacs [Previous year Rs. 181.13 Lacs] has
been raised on completion of Sales-Tax assessments up to the
year 2002-03 against which the Company has paid Rs. 18.57 Lacs
[Previous year Rs. 20.19 Lacs] as advance against appeal. No liability
has been provided towards the above demand as the Company
expects to get relief.

Year ended
31/03/2006

Year ended
31/03/2005

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

12.00

12.00

Contribution to
Provident Fund

0.19

0.19

Reimbursement of
Medical expenses

0.69

0.27

Salary

6) Management has evaluated impairment of assets as required by
AS-28, impairment of assets which was made mandatory for
accounting period commencing on or after 1st April, 2004. On
the basis of evaluation, management is of the opinion that there
is no impairment of assets of the company as on 31st March, 2006.

13) Sale includes inter unit transfers of Rs. 3720.91 Lacs [ previous
year Rs. 698.25 Lacs]
14) Fixed Deposit of Rs. 356.94 Lacs [previous year Rs. 349.23 Lacs]
is under lien with the Bank towards margin against Bank
Guarantee & Letter of Credit facilities.

7) No borrowing cost has been capitalised during the year.
8) Advance includes due from officers of the company Rs. 0.60 Lacs
(previous year Rs. Nil). Maximum amount due from the officers
during the year Rs. 0.75 Lacs (previous year Rs. 4.17 Lacs).
65

period and same may be treated as permanent difference.
Therefore, no deferred tax liability has been provided.

15) Insurance charges includes amount paid for Key Man Insurance
premium amounting Rs. 3.90 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 3.92 Lacs)
taken on the life of Shri. Govind Prasad Garg, Managing
Director and Shri. Ramesh Chand Garg, Chairman of the
Company.

b) The Deferred tax Liability and Assets as on 31st March, 2006
were Rs. Nil [previous year Nil].
21) Depreciation on assets against the government grant
amounting Rs.5.88 Lacs (previous year Rs. 0.52 Lacs) has
been charged to the respective grant account in accordance
with norms laid in Accounting standard (AS-12) Accounting
for Government Grants issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India .

16) In respect of Lease hold Land the value amortised during the
year is Rs. 3.18 Lacs which includes Rs. 2.75 Lacs pertains to
earlier years.
17) Auditors Remuneration includesYear ended
31/03/2006

Year ended
31/03/2005

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

As Auditors

2.53

1.65

For certification

0.28

0.25

Out of Pocket expenses

0.10

0.07

22) Related Party Disclosure [ As identified by Management]
i) Related Party Relationships
a) Where control exists

Nil

b) Key Management
Personnel

Shri Ramesh Chand Garg
[Chairman]
Shri Govind Prasad Garg
[Managing Director]

18) During the year 35,00,000 Equity Shares were allotted on
conversion of warrants issued during financial year 2004-2005.
The warrants were issued to discharge long term liabilities,
additional working capital requirements and capital expenditure
aggregating to Rs. 875.00 lacs. The warrant proceeds were
utilised for the purpose for which they were raised. The
unutilised amount of warrant proceed is Rs. Nil.

Shri Saurabh Garg
[Whole time Director]
c)

Relatives of Key
Management Personnel

Shri. Vivek Garg
[Son of Govind Garg]
Shri. Vineet Garg
[Son of Govind Garg]
Smt. Sheela Devi Garg
[Wife of Ramesh Garg]

19) Other Income Includes:Year ended

Year ended

31/03/2006

31/03/2005

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

Interest Received

25.69

20.27

Other Misc. Income

17.97

34.19

d) Other Related Parties

20) a) Deferred Tax Liability has been considered in accordance with
Accounting Standard-22- Accounting for Taxes on Income
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The Company has past record of regular capital expenditure.
On account of this, Tax Depreciation is regularly higher than
Book Depreciation and same trend is to be continued in next
years. Being a measure of prudential decision keeping in view
of past record and future estimate it is expected that the tax
effect of timing difference shall not be reversed in a long
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K. S. Food Products
K. S. Enterprises
K. S. Exim Limited
T. R. Agritechno Limited
K. S. Warehousing Corporation

ii) Transaction with Related Parties {Previous year figure are shown in [
Type of Related
Parties
i) Key Management
Personnel
ii) Relatives of Key
Managerial Personnel
iii) Other Related Parties

Description &
Nature of the
Transaction

]}

(Rs. in Lacs)

Volume of
Transaction
during theYear

Amount Outstanding
as on 31/03/06
Recievable
Payable

Remuneration Paid

12.00

[12.00]

Salary Paid
Issue of Share Warrants
(Converted in Equity Share)
Purchase of Goods

2.28
75.00

[2.28]
[25.00]

11,311.33

[10,436.55]

1,116.51
14.69
24.00
27.17
0.18
Nil

[37.57]
[15.74]
[06.00]
[6.93]
[0.18]
[23.05]

Sale of Goods
Job Charges Received
Job Charges Paid
Rent Paid
Rent Received
Interest Paid

205.64
79.36

23) Earning per Share
a) Net Profit after Tax available for Equity Share holders[Rs./ Lacs]
b) Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/-each outstanding during the year [Nos. of Shares]
c) Basic earning per shares [Rs.][a/b]

2005-06
1,516.85
63,98,380
23.71

367.10
[863.53]

2004-05
336.12
48,92,900
6.87

24) a) No amount has been claimed from the Company under the interest on Delayed Payments to Small Scale and Ancillary Undertakings Act, 1993.
b) Sundry Creditors includes Rs. 43.95 Lacs [Previous year Rs. 54.12 Lacs] due to Small Scale Undertakings.
c) Small Scale Industries undertakings to whom on amount of Rs. 1.00 Lacs or more was payable and outstanding for more than 30 days,
which were within the agreed terms are Brijbasi Packaging, Gupta Packing Products, Parth Packaging Products, Industrial Packaging Suman
Corrugated
25) Statement of Additional Information
Class of Goods Manufactured
A) Capacity [As certified by Management and Accepted by Auditors]
Unit

Licensed

Installed
Previous year

Current year

Mustard Oil (Owned)

M.T.

N/A

32,920

32,920

Mustard Oil (On Lease)

M.T.

N/A

48,000

24,000

DOC

M.T.

N/A

1,33,200

1,33,200

Solvent Extracted Oil

M.T.

N/A

43,200

43,200

Refined Oil

M.T.

N/A

44,100

44,100

Vanaspati Ghee

M.T.

N/A

45,000

45,000

Tin Containers

Nos.

N/A

60,00,000

36,00,000

HDPE Jars

Nos.

N/A

18,00,000

18,00,000

Wind Mill

MW

N/A

2.50

Nil
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26) CIF Value of Import- Raw Material
Finished Goods
27) Expenditure in Foreign Currency - Travelling Expenses
28) Earnings in Foreign Currency - On Export of Goods (FOB basis)
B) Trading & Production Data
Unit
Opening Stock
Oil
DOC
Vanaspati Ghee
By Product/ Packing Material/ Trading
Empty Tin
Production
Oil
DOC
Vanaspati Ghee
Power
Empty Tin
Purchases
Oil
DOC
Vanaspati Ghee
By Product/ Packing Material/ Trading
Empty Tin
Sale
Oil
DOC
Vanaspati Ghee
Power
By Product/ Packing Material/ Trading
Empty Tin (Captive Consumption)
Empty Tin (Sales)
Closing Stock
Oil
DOC
Vanaspati Ghee
By Product/ Packing Material/ Trading
Empty Tin
Raw Material Consumed
Mustard Seed
Soyabeen Seed
Oil
Palm/ Other Oil
Tin Plate
Oil Cake
HDPE

Year Ended
31/03/06

Year Ended
31/03/05

(Rs. Lacs)

(Rs. Lacs)

21,610.32
47.66
1.66
645.75

11,795.09
Nil
Ni1
630.53

Year Ended 31/03/06
Qty.
Value

Year Ended 31/03/05
Qty.
Value

(Rs. in Lacs)

(Rs. in Lacs)

M.T.
M.T.
M.T.

19,178
19,265
418

Nos.

2,02,544

M.T.
M.T.
M.T.
KWH
Nos.

98,715
1,10,697
10,046
138
32,77,901

Goods

M.T.
M.T.
M.T.

26,131
9,088
194

Nos.

0

Goods

M.T.
M.T.
M.T.
KWH

1,17,750
1,34,876
10,023
138

Nos.
Nos.

34,27,196
0

M.T.
M.T.
M.T.

26,274
4,174
635

Nos.
M.T.
M.T.
M.T.
M.T.
M.T.
M.T.
M.T.

Goods

7,275.35
826.37
173.92
108.62
77.84

12,327
10,483
697
59,174

5,173.16
901.33
323.14
148.82
20.29

52,590
93,157
13,595
0
26,89,634
10,412.40
405.33
64.06
589.94
0.00

29,544
4,395
0

48,661.71
7,583.12
4,342.32
0.01
231.51
0.00
0.00

75,283
88,770
13,874
0

0

21,77,423
3,68,841

33,450.86
5,104.43
6,364.06
0.00
164.22
0.00
162.29

53,249

10,081.39
185.74
231.24
202.47
25.37

2,02,544

7,275.35
826.37
173.92
108.62
77.84

82,874
22,230
60,472
10,386
3,370
1,00,721
226

13,624.43
2,363.98
21,584.54
2,004.82
1,523.52
2,449.80
142.93

81,941
16,278
14,832
14,563
2,642
87,162
264

13,754.08
2,071.70
6,182.66
4,860.90
986.52
1,979.41
141.09

Goods
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19,178
19,265
418

11,660.99
166.37
0.00
490.60
0.00

29) Segment information for the year ended 31st March, 2006
Primary Segment Reporting - Business Segment
Sr. Particulars
No.
1)
Revenue
External Sales-Domestic
Export
Total External Sales
Less : Inter Segment Sales
Total Revenue
2)

Results
Profit before interest Depriciation & Taxation
Less : Depreciation
Profit after Depriciation
Less : Interest
Profit before Tax
Less : Provision for Taxation
Profit after Tax

Other Information
3)
Segment Assets
4)
Segment Liabilities
5)
Capital Expenditure (include Capital work in progress)
6)
Segment Depriciation
7)
Net Cash Expenses other than Depriciation

(Rs. In Lacs)

Oil
Division

Refinery
Division

Vanaspati
Division

24,867
1,363
26,230
1,457
24,773

23,998
0
23,998

4,384
0
4,384

23,998

1,178
137
1,041
356
685
8,116
3,969
319
137
0

Solvent
Division

Power
Division

Total

1
0
1

4,384

3,013
3,192
6,205
2,264
3,941

1

56,263
4,555
60,818
3,721
57,097

811
0
811
297
514
-

908
91
817
41
776
-

-138
56
-194
21
-215
-

1
1
0
0
0
-

2,760
285
2,475
715
1,760
243
1,517

6,517
3,635
0
0
0

2,487
666
0
91
0

4,309
939
0
56
0

1,192

22,621
9,209
1,512
285
0

1,193
1
0

Notes
1) The Company has indentified business segment as primary segment. The reportable business Segment are “Oil Division”, “Refinery Division”,
“Solvent Division”, “Vanaspati Division” and “ Power Division” based on Industry and product lines. The type of products in each business
segment are as under
a)
Oil Division
- Mustard oil, Cake, Tin Container, HDPE Jars
b)
Refinary Division
- Refined oil, Tin Container, HDPE Jars
c)
Solvent Division
- Solvent oil, De-Oiled Cake
d)
Vanaspati Division
- Vanaspati Ghee, Tin Container, HDPE Jars
e)
Power Division
- Power Generation (Wind Mills)
2) a) Items of Expenses and Income, Assets and Liabilities {including borrowing, provision for Taxation and Advance-Tax} which are not directly
attributable/ identifiable/ allocable to business segment are shown as Unallocated.
b) Inter segment transfers are done at actual transfer prices.
3) Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Segments. The sales of the company are mainly in india The export turnover is not significant in
the context of the total turnover. There are no reportable Geographical Segments. Signature of Schedules ‘A’ to ‘N’.
As per our separate report of even date attached.

For Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Govind Prasad Garg

Sourabh Garg

(Managing Director)

(Director)

R.S. Rathi
Partner
M. No. 12121
Gwalior
30th June, 2006

Vikas Tulsiani
(Company Secretary)
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Balance Sheet Abstract and Company General Business Profile
i)

Registration Details :
Registration No. 3171
Balance Sheet Date: 31/03/2006

State Code 10

ii)

Capital Raised during the year ( Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Public Issue
Right Issue
NIL
NIL
Bonus Issue
Private Placement
NIL
656

iii)

Position of Mobilisation and developments of Funds (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Total Liabilities
Total Assets
13,412
13,412
Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital
845
Secured Loan
7,877

Reserve and Surplus
3,726
Unsecured Loan
859

Application of Funds
Fixed Assets
4,383
Net Current Assets
9,029

Investments
0
Misc. Expenditure
Nil

iv)

Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Turnover (Gross Revenue)
Total Expenditure
60,862
59,102
Profit before Tax
Profit after tax
1,760
1,517
Earning per Share
Dividend Rate (%)
Rs. 23.71
12

v)

Generic Names of Three Principles Products/ Services of the Company
(As per Monetary Terms)
Item Code No. (ITC Code)
23069003
23040002
15144002
2100
84101210

Morena
30th June, 2006

Production description
Oil cake and Oil cake meal of Mustard Seed, Solvent Extraction (Defatted) Variety.
Oil cake and Soyabeen, Solvent Extracted (Defatted) Variety
Solvent Extracted Oil.
Hydrogenated Vegetable Oil.
Power Generation (Wind Mills)

Vikas Tulsani
(Company Secretary)
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Govind Prasad Garg

Sourabh Garg

(Managing Director)

(Director)

K. S. Oils Limited
24k Purity in every drop

Regd. Office : Jiwaji Ganj, Morena - 476 001, Madhya Pradesh, India.
Tel. : +91 7532 233951-59 Fax : +91 7532 405060 Email : secy@ksoils.com
www.ksoils.com

Design at Saloni Ads : salonihem@gmail.com
print at Hemprints : 022 2687 4226 / 2687 1583

An ISO 9001:2000 Certified Company

